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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022

The Directors present their strategic report of the period from 28 July 2021 to 31 August 2022,

Throughout the document, references to the “Company” refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited. References to the “Group”
refer to Aspris Holdeo Limited and its subsidiaries. All amounts ar¢ presented in GBP £m, unless otherwise stated.

Pringipal activity
The principat activity of the company is (o act as an investinenl holding company,

The Group is a leading provider of specialist education and care services fo young peeple in the UK, Educating and
cating for a wide spectrum of specialist education and mental hezltheare needs, including autisin, learning difficulties,
social, emolional and mental health conditions (SEMH). In addition, the Group provides spectalist education and
mental health services to young people and adults respectively across the Middle East. The Group opetates via two
primary divisions:

*  The UK divisions pravide education and residential care and essessment for children with specialist
emotional and behavicural difficultles or autistic spectrum disoiders,

¢ The Middle East divisions provide education to young people in the UAE, and mental healtheare and
wellbeing services to adults and young peaple in UAE and KSA,

Business Review

Develppment of the business

The Company was incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 Auvgust 2021 acquired 100% of the shargholding
of Aspris Children’s Services Limited (*ACSL”) (previously named Priory Education Services Limited) through the
100% owned subsidiary Aspris Bideo Limited. These financial statements represont the results of the activities of the
Company since incorparation, the activities of the Aspris group since the date of acquisition and the subsequent
acquisitions and disposals deseribed below. Prior to the acquisition of ACSL the Group did not have any trading ov
operations and so the melrics quoted below as part of the ‘Performance of the Business® seclion are for the twelve
months ending 3 1st August 2022,

On 28 January 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased 100% of the shareholding in SC Topeo Limited. From this
date the consolidated results and activities of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandcastle Care®) gie repiesented in these financial
statements.

On 3] March 2022 ACSL scquited 100% of the shareholding in Hollybiue Healthcare (Avden) limited, latterly
renafned Aspris (Arden) Limited. From this date the tesults and activities of this acquired entity ate represented in
these financlal statements, Please see note 17 to the financial statements for additional information on the above
business combinations completed during the period.

In addition to the Group's primary focus of providing high quality education and care to all those within its services,
the Group has also been focused on the suecessful completion of the following key developments:

%  Separation from the Priory Group of companies. Whilst the operations of ACSL were largely autonomous
fiom those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of centra suppert services provided to it by
the Pricry Group. These services continued under a transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group’s acquisition of ACSL. This transitional stage included the implementation of Aspris® own
standalone systems and support infiastructure, the process of which was completed by 1% January 2023, with
all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased lo be provided from that date.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the peried to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Heview (eontinuedy

Develop

*

ment of Hic business {continued)

Acquisition and inlegralion of Sandcastle Care inio the Aspris Group. Sandcastle Care provides residential
care places for over 100 young people, primarily in the North West of the UK. These services ave similar in
nature to those already provided by the Group. The integration and Incarperation of this business into the
Group has been a focus for members of the management team during the pesiod.

Review of Group strategy and Jong-term plan. Following the successful separation from Priory Gieup, the
Group has underlaken a broad review of the key strategic direction and objectives of the business. The
compietion of this process provides the averarching framework within which the business is managed and
directed by the Board and senior managemeut,

Continued expausion of our Middle East operations. Since establishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,
ACSL has steadily grown the proviston of scrvices in the region to cater for the education and care needs of
both young, people and adults, including geographic expansion info KSA, Whilst the Middie Fast division
remains small relative to the primary UK operations (please refer (o note 4 lo the financial statements for
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August 2022), the region represents a central part of the
Group’s development slvategy,

Performance of the Business

The key financial and non-financial performance indicators during the period were as [bllows:

Key KPIs 2022
Turnover £179.2m
Operating profit before Impaitment losses und Exceptional costs £23.1m
Quality 83.2%
Capacity 1,910
Occupancy 1,660
Occupaney % 86.9%
Annual Growth in Middle East patient appoiniments 51.1%
HNotes:

1, Operating profit measure of £23.1im is equal 16 the Group's Cperating toss £4. 7 stated before Bxceptional costs of £7.8n, Impairmeni
Tosses of £19,7m and Other losses ol £0.9m

2. Qualily, Capaeity and Occupancy melrics relote (o the UK business only, unless siated

3, Capacity sn Oceupancy quoted are averges for e period on a nan-proformé basis, with dusl plocements included as a single wiit of
capacity and geeupancy




Aspris Ioldco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Reyiew {coutinued)

Quality of our services

A primary indicator of the Group's performance is the level of Quality of the services we provide to those in our
care,

Regutatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majosity of ou UK services ere regulated by the
Office for Standards in Education, Children's Services and Skills (*Ofsted”), and in Scotland and Wales by their
local equivalent. All schools and children’s homes must be licensed, and the relevant regulatars award quality
ratings to each service. [n Abu Dhabi, the school operated by the Group is regulated by the Aby Dhebi Department
of Education and Knowledge (FADBK’) but is also subject to British School Overseas inspectians. In addition, a
limited number of vur services are elso regulated the Care Quality Commission (‘CQC’) in England, and, in
Scotland, Wales, Northern Ireland, and the Middle Bast, by the local equivalent,

Within the UK the Group achleved an average % of facilities rated as Good or above by their respective vegulators
of 83.2%. This is above the national benchmark Jovel published by Ofsted but is below whore the business’
objectives ave in this ares, The provision of the best quality service is a key priovity and the business is focused on
continueus improvement in this area, supporied by increased investment in our support functions that directly or
indirectly support the quality of our services.

Within the Middle East, the Group's speciafist edueation operations in Abu Dhabi {the first dedicated autism school
in Abu Dhabi for Emirati students in partnership with ADEK) underwent the tirst major inspection of a dedicated
autism school in the region, The cutcame of this inspection was formally snnounced on 1% November 2022, wilh the
school achieving an Oulstanding rating across all areas. This further demonstvates the Group's established delivery
of exceplional level specialist education services boyond the Group’s primary UK. mavket,

Results for the perled

The Group delivered high quality services to meel the needs of a wids spectrum of young people, families, Local
Authorities and communities across the UK and Middie East. With an average number of 1,660 young people using
our services in the UK duting the petiod and 180 young people in the Middle Bast, In addition, the velume of outpatient
appeintments in our Middle East Wellbeing centres increased by 51.1% vs the equivalent prior period, driven partly
by the apening af two new cenires in Abu Dhabi and Saudf Arabia,

The results for the year ave st out in the consclidated Income Stateirent on page 26 and the financial position of the
Group a8 at 31 August 2022 is set oul in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position on page 28. Graup revenue
for the year was £179,2m and Operaling profit before exceptionat costs, impairment loss and other [osses was £23.1m,
which represents an operating mergin of 12.9% of revenue, Key factors of the operating profitability of the business
include the number of service users in. ouv facilities, the availability and cost of staffing and the cost of associated non-
wape costs required to support the young people and our operations more generally,

The Group’s net loss for the period was £27.1m, which was afier chatging £19.7m impairment to goodwill relating to
the Sandcastle division, and after £7.8m of exceptional costs, these primmily relate to the costs incurred in velation to
the corporate {ransactions undertaken and outlined above and in note 17. Further details of these exceptional charges
and impairment are given in notes 10 and 15 to the financial statements,

The Group's financial posltion and underlying operating cash generation is positive, with net assets of £92.0m at the
close of the perlod and net cash flow fiom operating activilies during the period of £34.2m.



Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Buginess Review (cantinued)

Results for the period (continued)

The largest component ofour cost base is the wages and related oncosts of our sia(f, which represents 67% of operating
costs,

Staff are our primary resource and the Group prioritises the vellbeing, retention and recyuiiment of our workforce.
This includes increased investment ju staff wages, but also in a range of measures designed Lo increase staff wellbeing
and engagement,

Staff shortages have been a feafure of the reporting period, with & small number of our available resldential places
being offline due to these consiraints, Despite (hese faclors the financial performance of the Group was inline with the
original business plan supporting the acquisition of ACSL.

Fufure developments and strategy

Management consider the Group to be in a good position lo expand the provision of its services in both the UK and
Middle East. Building on its existing high quality provision and strong vepulation within each region to provide
essential services Lo a greater mumber of people in the communities that it serves,

The Group steategy prioritises the improvement of quality and ulilisatien aeross all our existing facilities, in parallel
with contlnuing to expand (he specialist education aspects of the business, With the planned opening of new education
capacity at existing and newly identified sites, being complemented by the targeled and selective aoquisition of
existing specialist educalion providers.

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent with this strategy, the Group completed the acquisition of
a specialist education provider jn the UK, BHIS Holdings Limiled. The scquired business, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, provide speclelist educelion for wp to approximalely 100 primary and secondary schoo! aged young
people in the East of England, To support this acquisition, and the Group's broader growth objectives, the Group
entered into an extension of its svaifable external debt facilities with its existing lenders, This new growth facility was
agreed and effective from 8 February 2023,

In addition, after the close of the reporting period the Group completed a recrganisation of ils UK eperalions. This
veorganisation is aimed at improving and strengihening the management structure to increase focus on defivering on
the Group’s objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utllisation
across our portfolio, by lnereasing lransparency and management communication through ail tevels of the business.

[n the Middie East, the Group is growing via the maturing of its recently opened Wellbeing Centres and via wider
opperhnities ta expand the education offering across region. In KSA the Group cpened a Wellbeing Cenire in
Riyadh tirough its joint venture with a local partner that was entered inlo in 2020, The Group continues {o view
curvent and Riture local partaerships in the reglon as a key avenuc for growth,




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group can be impacted by 4 range of external factors. The principal factors ave the availability and retention of
the appropriate number of trained and qualified staff, the macro-economic environment resulting in increased infiation
and increased interest rates, changes in the UK government’s poley towards the funding of speclalist education and
care, changes In the regulatory regime, compelitive threats from other providers and the foss of key individuals, The
following are the most significant risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

Failure to comply with regulation and inereascd regulatory costs

Allof the Group’s services are subjecl to o high level of regulation by various regulaloty bodies. Lavs and
regulations are evalving within the sector (and may be introduced in the futwre) that could impose increased costs on
the Group’s eperations. The Group is unable to predict the content of new legislation and/or regulations and theit
effect on its business.

Inspections by regulators are cartied out on both an announced and unannounced basis, dependent on the specific
repulatory provisions relating to different care or education services. The failure lo comply with relevant regulations,
that therefore leads to the determination of regulatory non-compliance, or the failure of the Group to cure any defcct
noted in an inspection report could result in the revocation or imposition of conditions on the registration of any
service or & decrease in or cessation of, services provided by the Group at one or more of its facilities,

To mitigate these risks, the quality of care is monitored by an experlenced team and through the establishment of
robust policies and procedures. The team are independent of the operating divisions and report directly to the Board,
Homes are regularly audited by the teamn to ensure compliance with care standards and action plans ave drawa up in
eppropriate cases. Risks also mitigated by investing in the legal and compliance team, and in recruitment and
training. Where changes in legisiation can be predicted, the Group models the impact the changes will have in
advance of the legislation being implemented.

EmjHayces

The Group’s performance depends on its operational staff at our schools and residential homes. The managers of our
facilities, and their respective site fcamns, are essential for the provision of our setvices, The loss of key individuals
ahd the inability to vecruit peaple with the right experience and skills from the Jocal comnmunity could advessely
impact the Group’s results,

The relevant labour matkets for certain of our services have become mere challenging over the repoiting period and
may continue to be challenging, or become mare so, in the future. This may lead to an increase in the number of
stafF vacancies actoss the Group and therefore restrict the proportion of cur capacity that can be fully operational
and/or stow future growth prospects, Whilst the challenges have been less evident in the Education portion of the
business, as compared to the residential aspscts of our services, it has nevertheless been a factor across the Group.

To mitigate these issues the Group has implemented a wide range of measures to enhance both our recruitment and
relention of staff, These initialives are led by dedicated senior management from oyt Huiman Resources department,
along with our Learning and Development flinction, and are targeted at improving overall employee welfare and fo
ensure ow stalf offering, both financial end non-financial, is competitive within the merkets in which we operate.

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Directors take steps fo ensure competitive salaty levels across the Group and
have sought to increase across salaries across the Group during the perfod to aid retentlon and recraitment, with
specific consideration to the cost-of-living increases on all staff caused by the macro-economic environment,

However, there is a risk that these salary levels are not sufficient to improve the Group®s staff metrics and therefore
further constraints on our services due to staff shortages may be possible.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Erincipal Risles and Ungertainfies {continued)

Non-Wage supplies ad cost inflation

In addition 1o workforce remuneration, the Group alse incurs costs on a range of supplies, including food, education
supplies, energy/utilities and rental expenses. The current macro-economic backdrop places increasing pressure on
the avallability aud cosl of certain koy supplies.

With enesgy, and other bulk product supply, challenges across Burope driving higher inflation levels than in
previous years there is increased price pressure on the Group’s cost base, There is a risk thet these costs increase
further and, whilst they are 2 minorlly of the Group’s cost base, increases could still be material,

In addition, there is a rlsk that certain supplies will take longer to source and therefore substitute producls may need
to be Tound, there is a 1isk this could cause disruption to our services and that alternative supplies may be more
castly thaa those supplies which they replace.

In addition, certain supplies, such as food, are saurced fiom a low number of major national suppiiers and therefore
tiere may be a risk that discuption of secvice at otle supplier, or price changss by those suppliers, could have an impact
on the Group.

Te mitigate these areas the Group has a dedicated procurement finction focused on oplimising our sources, costs of
and seourity of supply. The Group engages on & regular busis with all our key suppliers to ensure effective management
of these visks. Tis addition, the Group seeks lo agree pricing and security of supply on a forward basis where possible
and appropriate, for example on our energy supplies, to increase visibility over cost and reduce supply side visks.
Management of these risks include maintaining relalionships with secondary source supplies to ensure options are
available to mitigate disruptions in supply fiom & perticular provider.

Loss of revenue from contraets with UI local autharlties

A substantlal proportion of the Group's UK revenue derives from publicly funded Local Authorities. The Group
expeels to continus to rely on the abllity and willingness ofthese bodles lo pay for the Group’s services. Whilst
there is an obligation for Local Authorities to fund the provision of such services to young people there Is a risk that
either budget constraints or other financial pressures could cause such publiely funded bedies fo allocate less money
to the types of service that the Group provides, or that political change or policy changes mean that fewer services
are contracled from independent sector providers,

In addition, thers is a rigk that these Local Authorities are not able to ieet the increased costs of us vigbly providing
services at cerlain facilities, due to the above-mentioned cost pressures.

To mitigate these risks the Group regularly assesses services pravided to ensure they represent value for money and
where necessary reposilions services to align with demand. Through the Group's dedicated Bidding and
Commissioning leam, and other members of our senior management team, the Group engages in regular
communigation with our Local Authorities customers to ensure these is clear and open dielogue with our key
customers.




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Repaort for the period to 31 Augnst 2022 (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertaiities (continued)

IT security and Dats Protectlon

The Group’s IT Infrastiucture i3 an integral part of its operaling capability. This inftastructure provides connectivity,
hardware and software applications to all of our facilities and central functions, Furthermore, the Group holds large
volumes of sensitive data, a portion of which resides within our IT environment,

There Is a risk that {he systems or applications fuil ov are subject to a sccurity breach that temporatily prevents their
use and therefore impacts our services. In addition, such an event may compromise sensitive data held within the
Group relating to its customers, which could expose the Group to further liability due to such & breach,

The Group invests significantly in meeting these potential risks. With a dedicated IT department reasonable for the IT
environment and security, complimented by external expert advice and services procured to enhance key aspects of
Data Protection end Cyber security.

Impact from fhe risks related to the Covin-18 pandemic

The global outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 represented a significant source of uncertainty within the wider
macroceonomic environment, ingluding the sectors in which the Group opetates, Disruption was experienced by most
scctors, and the Group’s services were not immune to these impacts,

Given the nature of our services the Group continued to operate its full service provision, with all schools and homes
remaining open in the UK, end our Middle Bast Wellbeing centres moving susesssfully to an ontine appointment
based madel. The teams across the Group performed with cutstanding professionalism to ensure we continued o
deliver essential cducation and care te all those that rely on our services.

Whilst there were notable staff absences due to self-isolation, and the resulting operational challenges, the long term
financial impact on the Group was not significant, and with the exception of the longer term constuaints that have
impacted the general labour matket refevenced above, the Gronp is currently not impacted by the pandemic,

The Directors believe any further similar outbreak would be met with a sirilpr successful response, but there is a risk
that a new Covid veriant, or other pandemic, may have a greater impac! on the Group’s ability to provide iis services.

To nitigate this the Group has ciear and robust infection cantrol policies, including contingency planning for staffing
in the event of & further outbreak,

10




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties {contfinped)

Financlsl risk manggenient

The Group Is exposed to {inancial risks in the form of credit, interest and Jiquidity risks which arise in the noral
course of husincss. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed to are hoted below, for further detail on these
financial risks pleast see note 27.

Credit visl

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables,
Cash is only deposited with major financial institutions that satisfy ceriain credit criteria.

Credil fisk is not congidered lo be significen| given that over 00% of revenue is derived from publicly finded entities,
and payment is taken in advance or at lime of treatient for privately funded healtheare services al owr Wellbeing
centres.

Interest yate risls

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external eredit facilities. All the external debt of the
Group containg a variable element which is linked to the Sterling Overnight Tndex Average, published by the Bank of
England. Senior loans are vepayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities ere repayable on 31 Augusl 2026,

The Group regularly reviews the options available to it for the hedging of interest rate visk, but currently does nof huve
a hedged component to the interest burden on its exiernal debt. In light of prevailing market conditions, and the high
cost of hedging instruments, the Directors belicve the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of inlerest rale
rises.

Liguidity risk

The Group prepares annual and monthly cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects.
‘The Group has sufficient avallcble faciiities and cash flows from profits to fund current commitments. The Group has
access (o a Revolving Credit Facility that is available to support the Group’s operational liquidity requirements at the
signing of the financial slalements the majority of this Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Sectlpn 172(1) statement

The following Section 172 statemen!, which is requived by he Compaaies Act 2006, deseribes how the Directors
have had regard to the natters set out In 5172 (la to 1f) Inctuding key decisions and matters that ave of strategic
iraportance to the Group, The Board of Directars, in line with their dutiss under 5172 of the Companies Act 2006,
act in g way they cansider, in good faith would be mast likely ta promaote the success of the Group for the benefit of
its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to a range of matters when making decisions for the long term.

We aim to pursue an open and transparent dialogue with our key stakeholders in order to develop & clear
undersianding of their needs, assess their perspectives and monitor their impact on our shrategic objectives. As part
of the Board’s decision-making process, the Directors consider the potenlial impact of decisions on relevant
stakeholders whilst a!so having tegard to a mimber of broader factors, including the impact of the Group’s
operations on the community and environment, responsible business practices and the likely consequences of
decisions in the long term.

ey stalehalders

Our key stakeholders are our service users (and their families), ourr workforce, our regulators and our investors and
lenders. Our commissioners, suppliers, and the communities we operate within are also impotlant stakeholder groups.
Allkey Board decisions take into account the impact on the relevant stakeholder groups, as follows:

Serviee users and thelr families

The Group provides specialist education, care and mental health services to a wide range of young people in the UK,
and to young people and adults in the Middie East, Those to whom services are provided, and their families, are
fundamental to every aspect of the Group®s operations and objectives. The Directors monitor the quality of service
provision to ensure the highest levels of care are provided by a highly skilled and well equipped sworkforce, In uddition,
the Directors monitor the condition and eppropriateness of the environment across the Group’s facilities to ensure the
physical environment in which services are provided are appropriately configured and mainteined ta the high standards
required for ieading education and cave provision. Feedhack is received directly through our operational teams, who
Interact directly with service users and their families, and through multiple chanrels of communication to senior
management to ensure issues can be faised and escalated outside of any specific care team or facility. The directors
are committed to ppen communication and transparency regarding all aspecls of our service delivery, and ensuring
the Group®s operations deliver service provistan to meet the specific needs of each individual service user.

Worlkforce

QOus workforce is key to providing safe and effective care to those whom we suppert. The Group employs a wide array
of specialist education and care professionals end engegement with those employees is paramount, The Directors
monitor the resuls of staff surveys, both regular and ad hos, together with the Group's system of employes forums
which oceur at local, vepional and national tevel, meaning the Board (s able to discuss hurnan resourcing matters with
the interests of its workforce at heart. An example of actions taken in response to the feedback generated through these
channels is the articulation of tallored career pathwvays available to all Group employees. Annoal salary reviews are
undertaken yith reference to the importance of colleague retention, changes in the National Living Wage, and
commersial factors, The Directors are committed to communicating the results of any wage reviews in a transparent
manner. Farther information in respect of employees is sot out on the Directors® report.

Investors

Qur shareholders register consists of a majority shareholders, Standbyco 35B.V. who are wholly owned by Waterland
Private Bquity Investments B.V., and a number of minority sharchotders which inchedes our largest single landlord
(Medical Properlies Trust) and various members of the Group’s management tearmn. The Board engages regularty with
its major shareholders in order to, inter alia, develop long-term and short-tern business strategy, decide upols resource
allocation and consider key business risks. This includes regular reporting to both Waterland Private Equity and
Medical Properties Trust lo ensure clear alignment and tvansparency over Group performance and direction.
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statement (continued

Repulators

We are subject to a high degree of regulation, particularly ia relation to the registeation and angoing inspection of our
services, The “business review” section above outline the key repulatory bodies. Resulis of inspections and more
general reports made hy the regulators are discussed by lhe Board where appropriate, and ongoing dislogue is
mainteined In order 10 respond with agility to emerging areas of focus, Some of our regulators also have responsibility
for monitoring the ongoing financial viability of our business — senior management meet with the regulators
periadically to engage in {his process. Staff bonuses schemes at all levels of the organisation ave at least partly linked
to the outcomes of internal and external quallty mefrics.

Customers

The majolity of our revenue is generated from the provision of services to Local Authorities and other public bodies,
with a minerity of revenues generated fiom private funding. In all cases is impovtant thal we evolve our service
provision to satisfy local demand {the needs af which can change over time), meet changing education and care criteria
and provide such servioes at the right time and place al an appropriate cost. Communication with customers is ongoing
both locally and nationally, and the Board will consider the requirements of customers when allocaling resources for
new or amended service offerings, and agreeing a gencral approach to findiong.

Suppliers

We aim lo treat our suppliers faivly and work in partnership with them as they provide essential poods and services to
the Group. ILis our policy to adhere Lo agreed credit teyms. We maintain slreng supphier relationships across our supply
chains, led by the Group's dedicated procurement finetion. Our key supplicrs also inciudes our contracted work foree,
agency workers and relaled slaffing agencies in the leaching and care professions, whe play an essentisl role in
delivering quality services. For all supplies we engage in transparent and robust tendering and onboarding processes
to deliver fair and sustainable outcomes for suppliers and for the Group.

Communities

The Group operates nationally and many of our facllities are embedded within the wider cammunity. It is therelore
imporlant that the impact of our operations on the communities we operate in are lsken inlo consideralion. We are
also cognisant of the need to consider the overall environment when conlracting wilh suppliers, or considering any
significant developmenl projects, for example.

Principal decisions

The Group defines prineipal decisions as those (hat are material, or of strategic importance to the Group, and also
those that have e sigeificant impact on any of our key stakeholder groups. By way of example, n selection of principal
decisions taken by the Boged during the year is set out below, highlighting the primary stekeholder groups affecled
and some of the considerations teken into account in reaching those principal declsions,

Approval of the 2022/23 budget

The Boavd approved, prior to the start of the new financial and academic year, the final budget for the twelve inonths
ending 31st August 2023. The budget includes forecasts for each existing facility as well as central functions in ovder
lo acrive at an aggrepated business plan. The key stakeholder groups affected are our Investors and cur workdores,
Some of the key consideralions (aken info secount ingluded the balance of delivering ever greater quality of services,
improved staff relention and growth of our services to service a greeter number of people,

13
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Section 172(1) statement {continued)

Facllity vefurbishments, expansions aud service changes

As parl of the 2022/23 budget, and looking ahead into the medivm term, the Board approved & mumber of significant
capital expenditure projects in order to refurbish and/or expand existing facilities, retool locations 1o better reflect
dermand for services and consider selective additional property acquisitions 16 expand eertain sevvice lines. The key
stakeholder graups affected are our Investors, our commissioners and current and future service users, Some of the
key considerations taken into account ingcluded the likely returi on investment of such projects, the ability of & praject
to meet the requirements of commissioners in providing s particular servies, and owr abiflty to safely and effectively
operate the service.

Anti-corruption and anti-bvibery matters

The Group has an eslablished and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corruption processes and controls in place, These are
supported by an internal audit function that has the mandate to pegform announced and unannounced inspections and
investigation into any (rattsactions occutring al e local, reglonal or group level,

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringto
Directar Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
‘Waoking.

Qquzl 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial stalements for the period from 28 July 2021 to 31
Angusl 2022,

Iucorporation
The Company was incorparated in Engiand and Wales and commenced trading oo 28 July 2021,

The conselidated finencial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Internalional financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and the [ERS Interprefations Commnitiee (“IFRS 1C*) interpretations as adopted by the UK.

This report should be read in conjunctior: with the strajegic report from page 4. The Group has chosen in accosdance
with Section 414C (2) of the Companries Act 2006 to set aut in the strateglc report the following which the Directors
belleve to bo of sirategic importance:

*  Business review;

*  Future development and sirategy;

*  Principal risic and uncerfainties; and
«  Financia! risk management.

Directors ol the Group

‘The Direclors, who held office during the period, were as follows:
Oliver § Bevan (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan Hallworlh (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan D Jervis (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Trevor M Torringlon {(Appointed 31 August 2021)

Dividends

The Board has not secommended a dividend for the repotting period and has no current plan to do so.




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 Augnst 2022 (continued)

Statemment of Divectors’ Responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the finencial slatements in
accordance with applicable Jaw and regulations.

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that faw the
Directors have elecled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs). Under company [aw the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfled that they pive & Liue and fair view of the state of affairs of the cornpany and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to;

»  select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and acconnting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK adopted International Financial Reporting Standavds (IFRSs) have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financiat statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate lo presume that the
compeany will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that ate sufficient to show and expiain the
Group’s and the company’s transactions and disclese with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posilion of
the Group and the company and enable them to ensure tha! the financial stefements cornply with the Companies Acl
2006. They are also respoasible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the company and hence for takiag
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other ivregularities.

Corparate poyvernance
The Group has robust Governance and oversight of all aspects of the business:

s The Board meet at least six times per annum and are responsible for the overall management and direction
of all espects of the Group.

¢ The Executive Commitlee, which is Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes senior management
from across all aspects of the business, meels monthly and are the primary executive team for the execuation
and governance of the day to day running of the Group.

+  Quality and Compliance committee, which is Chaired by the Direslor of Governance and includes senior
operational and function leads directly relaied to cducation and carc quality, meets monthly and is the senior
oversight of operatioral quality and risk.

»  Performance and Commercial Review comunittee, which is Chatred jointly by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chicf Financial Officor, meets monthly and s the senior oversight of the financial and commercial
performance of the business,

s Indepcndent inspections, ln line with the refevant legislation (regulation 44 of The Childven’s 1omes
(England) Regualations 2015)) the Group has a rotling programme of independent inspections that repoft into
the Executive committee and above quality commiltee. These provide independent oversight over the quality
delivery of appropriate and compliant education and care services,




Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Repori for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (vontinued)
Going concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s projected trading and associated liquidity requirements based on a range
ol seenarios lo ensure it has sufficient cash to meet its operalional and financial needs, These lorecasts are underpinned
by detailed end embedded forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near ferm
and Jong-term liquidity requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors decision making on ell key financial
matters, The Direclors consider both short lecm and long-lerm forecasts for the business, ranging ficm rolling three-
month daily liquidity forecasting, annual budget and periodic inlra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3
year fong range plans far the Group. Each of these prajecls the fiquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period is
driven by the non-cesh impairment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m snd exceplional costs of £7.8m, exciuding
these ilems the Group made a loss of £0.1m and en operating profit of £23,1m. The Group is foreeast lo make an
operating profit during tho going concem period. The Group generates sufficlent cash to cover ifs liabilities and surplus
balances ate held as cash reservves to invest In the Group snd support the business in future pertods. Al 31 Auguost 2022
the Group had debt of £165.0m due 10 its external lenders and finance lease lisbilities of £160.5m. No loans were due
to our shateholders.

These considerations include the availability of eommitted, but undrawn, debl facifities that ere available to the Group
to suppeit general corporate and working capital purposes. As ab 31 August 2022 these available but undrawn
facilitics were £15.7m

The Directors assessment of going concern considers three primary areas:
1. Key fundamernféal business factars

The Group’s primary business, and majority of the Group's revenues and cashflows, is generated via the provision
of setvices with specific characteristics thal ave key in considering dovwmside risk:

Provision of essential services

The group provides essential education and care secvices to meel the needs of a wide spectrum of young people in
our society. The demand for these services has increased over the last decede and continues to da so across the
country, Certain service arens are stated as a Governmental priority, hence funding is ringfenced for many of the
areas the Group provides.

Diversified payor base whh low credit risk across the significant mafority of the Group

The majority of the Group®s revenues and cashflows are generaled from customers thal sre publicly funded. This
Payor includes over 180 Local Authority customers actoss England, Wales and Scotland. In the majority of case
each LA services and fees are provided on bespoke commercial terms and paid for separateiy by each customer,
significantly reducing the cuslomer concentration risk.

Established position as o trusted provider

The Group is one of the leading providers of such services in the UK. The Group holds long standing relationships,
often held at both operations] and management levels, with ils individual customers. The Group has consistently
delivered above national benchmaks [or quality servlce provision and continues to place, as a pricrity, the
provision of the highest quality care to meet the needs of everyone it serves.

Strength, depth and experience of the Group's management leam and infirasiructure

Over many years the Group has developed, and invested in, the strength and experience of its workforce and
manzgement tearn, These factors enable the nalionwide provision of our serviess 10 be managed within a rigorous
risk management framework, to respand (o risks as they arise.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 Augast 2022 (continued)

Going coneern (continued)

L

bl

Versatility of skills 10 meet demand changes

The skills embedded in our workforce, and the rature of many of our facilitics, are such that we can be
responsive to chanpes In the needs and demands of the people we care for, their fundets and regulators, This
agility reduces the time taken to adapt the Group lo best address its core markets.

Cash flow visibillty

The majority of young pecple in the UK that we care for remain within cur services for more than a year, and the
payment value and timing for the related services are laigely defined at the ouiset of each placement, These
factors provide a base for good visibility over core trading performance and the warking capital requirements of
the business, Thereby leading to good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medium term,

Assessinent of the principal risks and inipact of a severe but plausible downside scenarlo

In assessing the potential impact of & range of risk factors on the business the Direetors have considered the
likely impact on the Group of a range of visks specific to the relevant business seetor, as well as the compound
impact of risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet date,

In patticular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Divectors in order to rssess Lhe likely
impaot of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simulisneously, giving rise to a matecial
adverse impact on the Group®s profitabllity and Liquidity durlng the going concern periad. Further details can be
found in note 3 oF the financial statements

Considevation of the controllable action fhat the Divectors can tale to mitipate a severe but plausible
downside scenarjo

In response to downside visks the Group has a range of actions, wwithin its control, that it could deploy o mitigate
the impact, These include but are not limited to:

. Reduction in non-essential capital expenditure, including the capital expenditure on future growth projects

*  Adapting or pavsing of services where no demand exists to reduce or halt losses at a particular facility and
better deploy resources

*  Reduction in certain aveas of discretionary spend that would nct heve any short to medium teim adverse
impact on the Group

In agpregate the inclusion of mitigation actions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenant headroom
further, versus the unmitigated scenario

Having considered all of the above factors the Directors have concluded there is no materiel uncertainty on the
Group's ability 1o continuc a3 a going concern for the period from the date of the approval of these finencial
statements to 31 August 2024,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Engagement with employees

The Directors recognise thet the continued position of the Group in the specialist education, care and behavioural care
inclustry depends on the quafity and motivation of its employees. Well trained, engaged and guality employees are
crugial for the Group to ensure that service usecs recelve the best quality eave, The key guality performance indicators
the Group uses lo measuie engagement and training are: the employee opluion survey, employee sickness [evels and
compliance with the Group e-learning programme. The Group hes low levels of sickness end high levels of complinnce
with training programmes. Whilst monitoring these peiformance indicators, the Group confinues lo review its
remuneration system to ensute it is fair, wansparent, flexible and provides individua! recognilion. Empleyees have a
personal development plan thet is monitored, assessed and modified during the annual appraisal process.

The Group recognises that good and effective employee communications are particularly important to retaining and
motivating employees, and throughout the business it is the Directors” policy to promote the underslanding by all
employezs of the Group’s business aims, purpose, performance and individual opportunities for personal and cereer
devetopment, This is achieved through inlernal publieations, preseatations on performance and a variety of other
appraaches appropriate for a particnlar focation, Employees are consulied on issues through our Active Colleague
Engagement (‘ACE'} forums. In all these aveas, the Group coniinues to further invest in resource and 1T solutlons in
ovder to deliver a positive experience for all our colleagues,

The Directors belicve that it is jraportant to recruil and retain copable and caring staff regardless of their gender,
marital status, race or religion. Tt is the Group’s policy to give full and fair consideration to applications for
employment from people who are disabled, 1o continue wherever possible the employment of and to arrange
appropriate lraining for, employees who become disabled and to provide cqual opportunities for the career
development, traiting and promotion of disabled employees.

Charlfable Donations

During the period the Group made charitable donation of £50,000. Individual donations were as follows:

Charity i £

UNICEF — Ukratne appeal 50,000
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamline(l snergy and carbon repoerting

In April 2019, the Department for Business, Bnergy and Industriai Strategy introduced a new reporting regulation
ontitled the Streanilined Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework {“SECR"), replacing vavious other repoiting
requirements. Organisalions subject to SECR are required to include information relating to their encrgy usage and

carbon £missions.

The encrgy used and emissions (he period ended 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Emission type Total Caleulnted
Voluine Emissions
{lkWh) (Tonnes of
) . CO%)
Seope 1 (divect) 13,814,587 2,954.9
Scope 2 (indirect) ) 5,020,739 970.9
Scope 3 (indivect) 26,798 26.8_
Total 18,862,124 39526

Scope | Bmissions (direct) ave Emissions from activities owned or controlled by the Group, that release smissions
inlo the atmosphere, scope [ emissians for Aspris Group include amongst other, combustion in ovwned boilers and

vehicles,

Scape 1 Emisslons (direct) for the peciod are as follows:!

Energy type Definifion Total Caleulated

Volume Tinisslons

(kWh) (Tonnes of

CO%)

Gas Emissions fiem combustion of gas 6,407,987 1,169.7

Other Fuels Emissions from combustion of fuels for stationary 7,153,714 1,532.3
machinery and engines

Transport Emissions fiom combustion of fuels for transport 252,886 252.9

purposes
Tetal 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 Emissions (indirect) are emissions releesed inte the aimosphere associated with the Groups consumption of
purchased elcctricity, heat, and cooling, These ere indivect emissions that are a cansequence of the Group’s

activities, but which occur at sources that the Group does not own or control,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 dugust 2022 (continued)

Stremulined energy aud ¢arbon reporting (continued)

Scope 2 Emissions (indirect) for the perlod ave us follows:

Energy type Definition Total Calculated
Yolume Enisstonsg

(KWh) (Tounes of

CQ%)

Electrioity Emissions from purchased electricity 5,020,739 970.9
Total 5,020,739 970.%

Scape 3 Emissions (Indirect} are emissions that are a consequence of the actions of the Group, which accur at source

which are not classified as scope 2 emissions, Bxamples of Scope 3 einissions are business travel by means not

owned ot controtied by the Group.

Scope 3 Entissions {indirect) for the period are as foltows:

Encrgy type Definltion Taotal Calculated
Volume Emissious
{I5'Wh) (Tonnes of
CO%)
Employeesowned cars  Emissions from business travel in rendal cats or 26,798 26.8
eniployee-owned vehicles where the company is
vesponsible for purchasing fue! {(mandatory)
Total 26,798 6.8
Intensity Ratio
The Group manifors an [ntensity katio in the form of & comparison of enissions to turnover:
Intensity measule Turnover Intensity
im Ratlp!
Tonnes CO% per lole] £m turnover 179.2 22.06
Total 179.2 22,06
HCOefTuthover £m

Quantification and reporting methodology

The Group has taken guidance from (he UK Governmient Envivonmental Reporting Guidelines (March 2019), the
GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard, and from the UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Repotting document for calculating carbon emissions. Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has
been obtained directly from our energy suppliers and half-hourly (HH) data, where applicable, for the IH supplies,
For supplics where there wers not complete perlods etiergy usage available, flal profile estimation techniques were
used to complete the periods consumplion. Tranaport mileage data was obtained from expense claims submitted by
the Group’s cars end grey fleet. CO% emlissions were calculated using the appropriate emissicn factors 2022 from

the UK Government GHG conversion information.

21




Aspris Holdco Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon veporting (continued
Enercgy efficient action

In the past year the Group has undertaken various encsgy officiency works across the estate, including the upgrading
of AC systeins, bailers and insulation. The Group have, 2t & number of sites, commenced conversion of Oil heating
systems to more efficient LPG solutions, These focussed works are ongolng alongside gencral refurbishments
undertaken Including LED lighting and general efficiencies,

The Group wil} conlinue our efforts through participation in Phase 3 of ESOS (Bnergy Saving Opportunities Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint through continued structured investment in encrgy
efficiency programmes.

LEthical trading

The Group endeavows to puichase goods and services with the least environmental impact, Our efforts for waate
diversion from landfill, recycling, collection, and segregation have meant that the Group have diverted 99% of trade
waste away from landfill, Aspris elso recycled 35% of all twade wasle generated, and we remain committed to
increasing this percentage of recycling year on year, with a target of 50% by the end of 2023.

‘We continue o be supported in our efforts through the collection of recyclable materials, the collection and
conversion of our waste cooking oif to diesel, and other initiatives,

Disclosure of information to fhe anditor

Rach Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a divector in order to make themselves awave of any
relevant audit information and 1o establish that the Group's auditor is avare of that information, The Directors
confirm that there 1s no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Approved by the Board and sighed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringtp
Director

'The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Opinien on the financinl statements
T our opinion:

» the financial statements give a lruc and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s
affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of the Group’s loss for the period then ended;

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted intcinational
accounting slandards;

+ the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepaved in accordance with United Kingdom
Generslly Accepted Accounding Practice; and

+  the financial statements have been prepaved in accordance with the requirsinents ef the Companies Ast 2006,

We have sudited the financial statements of Aspris Holdeo Limited {“the Parent Company™) and iis subsidiaries (“the
Group™) for the period ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Consolidaled Income Statenient, Consolidated
Staternenl of Comprehensive Income, Consolldated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statemnent of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Stutement of Cagh
Flows, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financiel reporting framework thal has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting slandards, and as regavds the Pavenl Compaay financial statements, as applied in
accardance with the piovisions of the Comupanies Act 2066,

Basts for opinion

‘We conducted our audit in: aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and epplicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibitities for the audit of the
financial statements section of ouy report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriale to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mdependence

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Conipany in accardance with the ethical requilvements that are televant
to our audil of the financiai siatements in the UK, including the FRC’s Bthical Standaid, and we have fulfiiied our
other ethics! responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conelusions relating to going coneern

In auditing the financial statemenls, we have concluded thet the Directors” use ol the going concern basis of sccounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is apprapriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertaintics relating fo events or
condillons that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Compaty's ability to
contlnue as a golng concern for a peried of at least bvelve months from when the financial statements are authorised
for jssue,

Our responzibilities and the respongibilities of the Divectors with respect to golng concern are deseribed in the
relevant seclons of this repost.
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Aspris Holdco Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASI'RIS HOLNCO LIMITED
(CONTINULD)
Other information
The Directors are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s seport thereon. Qur epinion on the financial
statcments does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
da not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,
Ourresponsibitity iste read the other informalion and, in doing so, considerwhether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the finaucial statements ov our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or othervise appears
o be mater{ally misstated. Ifwe identify such material inconsistencies o1 apparsnt material misstaternents, we are
required to delermine whether this gives rise to 2 material misstatement in the financial statements themselves, If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this olber information, we
are required to report that fact,
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other Companies Act 2006 reporthig

In ouv opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistont with the financial statements; and

» the Strategic report and the Directors’ repost have been prepared In accordance with applicable legal
requirgments,

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained
in the courze of the audit, we have no! identified materinl misstaterments in the Strategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

s the Parent Company fiancial statements are hot in agreement with the accounting records and refurns; or

»  certain disclosures of Directors® remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s wehave not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsiiilities of Directors
As explained more fully in the Stalement of Direclors' Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal

control as the Directors deteimine is necessary to enable the preparation of financiel statements that are fiee from
material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

1n preparing the financiel statements, the Directors ave responsible for agsessing the Group’s and 1he Parent Company’s
abilily to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters telated {o going concern and using the geing
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or fo
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibifitios for the audit of the financial stntements

Qur objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as @ whale are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or eror, and to issus an auditor’s report that includes our opinicn.
Reasonable assutance is & high level of assirance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
[SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatemenl when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material If, individuaily or in the aggregate, they could reasenably be expected to influence the
ecenomic decisions of users laken on the basis of fhese financiat stalements.

Extent fo which the awdit seas capable of detecting ireegularities, insluding frand

Iregulatities, including fraud, are inslances of non-coripliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures in
line with our zesponsibilities, oulined above, lo detect material misstatements ln respect of irregularities, including
fraud, The extent 1o which our procedures are capable of delecting, irregulavilies, including {raud is detaited below:

We have identified and assessed the potential risks related to itregulevities, including fraud, by considering the
Sollowing:

o the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group’s remuneration policles;

o enquiries of management regarding; compliance with laws and regulations; the detection and
respanse (o the risk of fraud and any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud; and the
canlrols in place to miligate risks relaled to fraud or non-comptiance with laws and regulations.

a oblalning an understanding of the legal and regulatory Bamework in which the Group operates,
including employment law, and Health and Srfety tequirements,

o performing procedures lo verify the existence of revemues, and consider the risks acound the
fraudulent recognition of amounts,

We have responded to risks identified by performing procedures inciuding the following:
o enguity of managemeait concerning actual and potentlal litigation and clgims;

o reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing o supporting documentation to assess
compllence with relevant laws and repulalions;

o pesforming enalytical procedures fo identify any unusual or npexpected relationships which may
indicate risks of misstatement dye to fraud; and

o reading (he minutes of meefings of those charged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations,

We have alse considered the risk of fraud through menagement ovenide of contrals by:

o sample lesllng the appropriatensss of jounal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the
judpements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating
the business rationale of any significani trensactions that are unusual or outside the normal course
of business;
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Asptis Holdco Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 10 THE MENMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

o discussing among the enpagement leam how and where fiaud might accur in the financial statements
and any potential indicatows of fraud. As part of this discussion, we consideied potential for fraud
in revenue recognition, specifically in relation to rovenue existence, as well as the potential for
management overtide of controls specifically in relation to the posting of journal adjustments and
the inappropriate use of estimates.

o in addressing the risk for fiaud in revenue recognition, tesling the appropriatencss of the revenue
recognition policies and the application of these pollcies and performing specific procedures over
the exislence and cut-off of revenue; and

o discussing with management and those charged with governance whether they are aware of any
frauds, or non-compliance with laws and regulations, during the petiod.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to tisks of material misstatenent in the financial statements,
recoguising that the risk of not detecting u material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from ciror, as fraud may involve dellberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentalions or
throughi collusion. There are inkerent limitations in the audft proceduces perfortned and the further retnaved non-
compliance with laws and tegulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we are to become aware of it

A further description of our tesponsibilities is available on the Financlal Reporting Council’s websile at:

hitps:ihvww. fro.orp uk/auditorscesponsibilities. This description farms part of our auditer’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely ta the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance syith Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
menibers those matters we arc required to stete to them in an auditors report and for no other purpose, To the fullest
exlent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyene other than the Parent Company and the
Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DoeuSigned by:

Paul Etluringon.

E10CCECFADARACS...

Paul Gtheringtor BSe FCA CF {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Stetutory Auditar
Reading, UK

22 March 2023

BDO LLP is a limited lability parinership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Income statement for the period ended 31 August 2022

Note 2022

£

Revenue 4 179.2

Operating cosls (156.1}

Exceptional {tems 10 {7.8)

Impairment loss 15 (19.7)

Other losses 8 0.3)
Operating loss jl‘ﬂ)i

Nel finance costs 3 (22.7)
Loss before taxation T e1e (274

Income tax 11 03
Loss attributable to the owuers of the Group —W

27
The notes an pages 34 to 73 form an integral parl of these financial slatements.




Asprig Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Tncome for the period to
31 August 2022

2022

£m

Loss for the period (27.1
_Total contprehensive income for the period (27.0)
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Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Nate 2022
£m
Assels
Nou-turrent assets
Property, plant and equipmend 12 158.1
Right of use assets - 13 156.4
Intanglble assets 14 143.4
. . 457.9
Current pesets
‘Trade and other receivables 18 24.5
Cash and cash equivalent 19 8.1
42.6
Totnl assets 500.5
Current Jiabilities
Lease liahililles 13 (5.1)
Trade and other payables 24 (21.5)
Income lax linbility (0.9
Deferred income 20 {28.8)
(56.3)
Net current liabilitles (13.7)
Non-current Habilities
Lease liabilities 13 (155.4)
Loans and borrowings 22 (159.6)
Provisions 23 {L.0O)
Deferred tax [fabilities 26 (38.2)
(352.2)
Net assets 92,0
Share capital 21 846
Share premium 34.5
Accurnulated losses - (21.1)
Total equity 92,0

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

21 March 2023
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The noles on pages 34 1o 73 form an integral part of these financial stateiments,




Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended

August 2022
Share capital Sharve Retnined Total equity
Premium Earnings
Loss for the pertod 27.1 27.1)
Total comprehensive income 27.1) 271
MNew share eapital subscribed 84.6 4.5 _ - 119.1
At 31 August 2022 846 34.5 27.0) 92.0
30

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.




Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiavies 16 1151
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent i9 Q9.7
0.9
Total nssefs 120.0
Cwrrent liabilities
Trade and other paynbles 24 ©.9)
Net curvent assets/(tabilities) -
Net assets 119.1
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premium 34.5
Total equity 119.1

The Company has taken advantage of {he exemption conferred by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from
presenling its own profit and loss account, The Company’s loss for the year was £19,000.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Direcior

Director

21 March 2023

3l
The hotes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period

ended August 2022

Share eapital Share Refained Total equity
Premiuny Eavnings
Loss for the pexiod - -
Tolal compreliensive incone - B
MNew share capifal subseribed _ 84.6 34.5 - IO
At 31 Angust 2022 ) 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
|
32
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

Cash flows from opernting activities
Lous for the peried

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on right of use asscts

Impalement of goodwill

I.oss on disposal of property plant end equipment
Finance income

Finarnce costs

Share of [ess of equity acconnted investees
Income tax

‘Working capital adjustments
Increase in lrade and other receivables
Tncrease in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions

Decrense in deferred income

Cash geaerated from operations
Tncome taxes paid
Net cash flow from operating activitics

Cash flows from jnvesting activities

Interest recelved

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment
Proceeds ffom sale of property piant and equipment
Advances of loaus to joinl ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries - net of cash acquired

Cash flows from finaneing activities

Interest paid

Progeeds from issue of ordinary shares

Proceeds from external bovrowing draw downs
Repayment of external bortowing

Repaymenl of loans advanced from former pareni
Principal paid on lease liabilities

Interesl paid on lease liabilities

Net incvease in, and closing cash and cash equivalexnts

MNofe

jury
oD e oy

I\
13
13

15

2022
a1

(27.1)

137
8.5
19.7
.3
(0.1)
22,8
6.5

R )
38,0

(6.4)
4.1
0.2

(0.1

358

(1.6)
34.2

0.1
fz.n
1.0
a.n
(123.7) .
{135.8)

(11.3)
1191
158.6

(41.3)

(20.1)

(4.8)
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

1. General informeation

The company is & privale company limited by share capital, incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled in
United Kingdom, registration number 13534635, Aspris Holdco Limited Group includes the Aspris Children’s
Services Abu Dhabi Branch,

These financial slatements were authorised for issue by the Board on [7 March 2023
2. Accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements have been prepered In accordance with Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards
and its interpretalions adopted by the UK ("UK adopted [FRSs"),

Summary of significant accounting policies and key estimatces

The principal accounting policies epplied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounling
standards in conformity with the requirements of the companies act 2006 us applicable to companies using TFRS.
The Company has elected ta prepare its parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK generally
accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP), including FRS 101

The finencial statements have been prepared under historical cost accounting rules.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
elected not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Incomea in these finenclal statements.

Going concern

The Board reviows forecasts of the Group’s liquidity tequirements based on a range of scenarios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operationa! and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term and long-term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors® decision making on all key financial matters. The Directars
consider both short term and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-montk daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and [onger term 3 year long ranpe plany
for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity atd covenant headvoom for the Group.

The Group made g Joss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss it the current perjod
reflects the non-cash Impaltment of goodwill (see note 15) of £19.7m and exceptional of £7.8m, excluding these
items the group made a loss of £0.1m 2nd an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an opevating
profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash to cover its liabilities and surpius
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business [n future periods, At 31 August
2022 the Group hed debt of £165.0m due to ils external lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. Ne loans
wete due to our shareholders.

As part of their considerations the Directors review a range of different scenarios, including a seveic but plausible
downside scenarlo to essess the impact on both the liquidity and covenant headronm of the Group, see note 3.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Avgust 2022
(continued)

Rasls of consolidation

The Group linancial slalemeats consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidlary undertakings
drawn up lo 31 August 2022,

A subsidiaty is an entity controlled by the Company, Control Is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial end operating policles of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its aclivities,

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are [ncluded in the income statement from the
cffective date of acquisition or up 1o the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to 1he financial statements of subsidiaries to bring thelr accounting policies into line with those used by the
Group.

The purchase tethod of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition of
subsidiavies by the Group, The cosl of a business combinalion is measured as the fair valuc of the assets given,
equily fustruments issued and liabilities incutred or assumed sl the date of oxchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the business combination, Identifiable assets acquired and Habilities and contingent liabifities assmued ina
business combination are measured initially at theic fulr values at the acquisilion date. Any excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer’s inlerest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised is recorded as goodwill,

Inter-company transactlons, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which sre related parlies, me eliminated in full,

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but tnay indicate an impairment hat requires recognition in the consalidated
financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy
The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 28 Tuly 2021:
+  Amendments o TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

None of the standards, interprelations end amendments effective for the first time from 28 July 2021 have had &
material effect on the financial siatements,

The foliowing new standardg, interpretations and amendments are not yet effect:

*  Amendinent to 1AS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Mon-cuirent

+ Amendments to TFRS 3 “Definilion of & business”

+ [AS 16: PPE: Proceeds bafore inlended use

{A 8 37; Onerous cotilracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

Anhual improvement cycle to IFRS (2018-2020 Cyole}
o IFRS 1; Subsidiary as a first time adopler
o IFRS 9: fees in the *10 per cent’ test for derecognilion of financial liabilitics
o ITRS 16: Lease incentives amended example

* 1AS 8; Definition of acecimting estimales

¢ [AS 1: Disclosure iniliative — accounting policies

*  Amendments 1o IAS 12 “Deferred lax relating to assets gnd labililtes arising from a single transaction”

None of the standards, interprelalions and amendments which are effective for periods beginning after 28 July 2021
znd which have not been adopted early, Bre sxpected to have a material effect on the financlal statements.
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Aspris Haldeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Revenue Recognition
Recognition

Revenue is recognised based upon the number of people per day to which we have provided a service. These volume
metrics are recorded and combined with the applicable fee rate per person per service, o derive the totsl revenue to
be recognised. There Is limited judgemental input this process

Revenue is recognised as performance oblipgations are setisfied as conlrol of services is transferved to the customer,
The Group hag determined that most of its performance obligetions are satisfied over time as the client
simultaneously received and consumes the bensfits provided by the Group as the education or care services ave
rendered. In the circunistances, revenue is recognised at the amount which the Group has the right to invoice, where
that amount corresponds divectly with the value to the eustomer of the Group’s performance completed to date.

The principles in IFRS ave applied to revenue recognition criteria using the folicwing 5 step model:

1. Identify the contracts with the customer

2, Identily the perforinance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the Lansaction price

4. Allecete the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contiact
5. Recognise revenue when or as the enlify satisfies its performance eblipations

Fee arrangemelnts

Below ave details of fee arrangements and how these ave measured and recoghised, for revenue from the provision of
services: '

Aspris delivers special education and care services to its sevvice users in line with contractual agreements, which
clearly state the nature of the services to be provided over what time period. The main performance obligations in
contracts consist of delivery of setvices to service users, For all conteacts the stage of completion and delivery of
performance obligations are measured at the balance sheet date by reference to services delivered to service users at
that date.

Transaction price

To calculate the transaction price of contracts rates are applied daily or by specific service provided to service usets
as detailed in contiactual agreements.

Eayment terms

Payment terms range from payment in advance of services delivered lo within & range of specified days of receipt of
service or invalce, dependant on the specific circumstances and needs of the service users.

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax, Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a ¢change
atiibutable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.,

The cuirent income lax charge is calculaled on the basis of fax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countrics where the Group operates and generates taxable income,
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, ptant and equipment is stated in the statement of financial position at cosl, less any subsequent
accumulaled deprecialion and subsequens accumulated impoirment losses.

The cost of properly, plant and equipment includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their
acquisition and installation.

Deprecintion

Depreciation s charged so as 1o write off the cost of sssots, other then land and properties under consiructton over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset elass - Years depreciated over

Freehold buildings 50 years

Leasehold buildings The lease tenn

Fixtwres end fittings 3to 16 years

viotor vehicles The shott of the lease letin or 4 years

Intangible assets

Goodwill arising an the acquisition of an entity represeits the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in (he net fair value of the idenlifiable assets, liabllitics and conlingent liablilities of the entity recognised at
the date of acquisition, Goodwill is initially recaognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses, Gooadwill is held in the surrency of the acquired entity and revalued to the
closing rate at each reporting period date.

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tesled for impairment on at least an annual basis, The impairment test
compares the recoverable value of a cash genetating unit ('CGU), the value in use of thal CGU and the carcying
velue of the intangible asset in aceordance with IAS36, This assessment factors in the latest developments within
eack CGU, [ncluding amongst olher factors, current trading, capacity and staffing constraints fo assess en estimation
of the future cashflows and the determination of a discount rate in order lo calculate the present value of those casl
flows,

Negaiive goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised divectly in the income statement, On disposal of a
subsidiary or a joinily controlled entity, the altributable ameunt ef goodwill is included in the determinalion of the
profit or loss recognised in the income statement on disposal.

Separately ecquired rademarks and licences are shown at historical cost.

Trademarks, licences (including saftware) and customer-related intangible assets acquired in & business combination
are recognised at fair value st the acquisition date.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Angust 2022
{continued)
Aporiisation

Aunortisation s provided on intangible assets so as to write off the cosl, less any estimated residuat value, over their
expecled useful economic life as follows:

Asset class Years amortised over
Customer contracts ) 6 1o 17 years

"The amortisation periods are based on expected customer chuin rates and, whete relevant, the length of fixed-term
customer conlracls

VYaluation of investments

Investments in subsidiarics held by the company are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment in the
company’s siatement of financial position,

Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other shovi-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertibie to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade receivables

Trade recsivables are smounts dus from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business, If
collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assefs, 1L not, they are presented as non-current asseis.

Trede receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amartised cost
using the effective intcrest method, less provision for impairment, A provision for the impairmient of (rade
recelvables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according ta the origingl terms of the recetvables.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the erdinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable arc classified as current Habitities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normaf cperating cyele of the business if longe), 1f not, they are presented as non-cutrent linbilitics.

Trade payables are recagnised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(coniinued)

Borrowlngs

All borrowings are initialty recorded al the falr value which is ofien the amount received, net of ransaction costs,
Borowings ate subsequently catried al amortised cost, with the difference belween the proceeds, net of transaction
costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the income statement over the period of the
velevant borrowing.

Interest expense is recognised on the basts of the effective {nterest method aud is included in finance costs,

Bortrowings ate elassified as curreal liabilitles unless the Group has an uncenditional right to defer settiement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reparling dale.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics in the
censolidated financlal statemenis and the corresponding tex bases used in the computation of laxable profit.
Deferred tax kabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally yecognised for afl deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those dedustible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if tho temporsry difference avises from the initial 1ecognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the texable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred fax liabilitiss are not recognised if the temporary diffevence arises from the initial recognition
of poodwill,

Dreferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable lemporary differences associated with invesiments in subsidiaries
and associates, and Intercsts in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to contre! the reversal of the tempotary
difference and it is probable thal the temporaty difference will not veverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
agsets arising from deductible temporary differences assoclated with such investments and interesis arc only
recognised to the exlent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which fo utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are cxpected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax nssets is reviewed al the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficlent taxable profits will be available to allow alt or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilitics and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periad in whioch the
Hability is setiled or the asset realised, based on lax rales {and tux laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would fellow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, lo recover ar setile the carrylng amounl of its
assets and liabilities,

39




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional ftems

Ttems that are both malerial and non- reoccuring and whose significance is sufficient to warrant separate disclosure
and identification within the consolidated financial information ave referred to as exceptional items. Items that may
give rise to classification as exceptlonal include but arve nole limited to, sipaificant and material reorganisation and
restructuring programmes, re-financing and acquisition costs. Further details of exceptional items can be found in
note 10.

Provisions

Provislons are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to scttle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obiigalion.

Provisions are measured at the Directors' best estimate of the expenditure required to settte the obligation at the
reporting date and ave discounted lo present value where the effect is matesial,

L.eases
Definition

A lease is a contract, or a pait of a contract, that conveys the vight to use an assel or & physically distinct pait of an
assel {"the underlying asset”) for a periad of thne in exchange for consideration. Further, the contract must convey
the right to the Group to control the asset or u physically distinct portion thereof, A contract is deemed to convey the
right to control the undetlying asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to:

*  Obtuin substantlally all the econemic benefits from the use of the underlying asset, and; i
»  Direct the use of the underlying gsset (e.g. ditect how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group initially recognises a lesse liability for the obligation to make lease paymenls and a right-of-use asset for
the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term,

The leasc liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term, with the
discount vate determined by reference to the rale inherent in the lease unless (as is lypically the case) this is not
readily determinable, in which case the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used.
The lease payments include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise ptice (where payment is reasonably
cerlain), expected amount of residual value guarantees, termination option penaities (where payment is considered
reasonably certain) and varisble lease payments that depend on an index or rate. [n such cases, the initial
measurernent of the lease (iability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other varinble lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

The right-of-use asset is Initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease
incentives received, the Group's initial divect costs (e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal and
dismantifng costs.

Subsequent measurement

After the commencement dale, the Group measures the lease liability by:

(a) Incremsing the canying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

{b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(¢) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect tevised in
substance fixed lease payments ov on the occurrence of other specific events,
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Aspris Holdoo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2622
(continued)

Leases (contiuued)

Interest on the lease Liabillty in cach perlod during the lease ferm is the amount that produces a constant periodic rale
of interest on the remalning balance of the lease liability. Interest charges are presented separately as non-operating
costs, included in fluance cost, in the Income statement, unless the cests are included i the cawrying amount of
anather asset applying other applicabie standards,

Variable fease payments not Included in the measurement of the lease liabllity, are included In operating expenses in
the perfod in which the event or condition that triggers them arises,

The related right-of-use asset is accounted for using the Cost model in TAS 16 end depreciated and charged in
accordaiice with the depreciation requirements of TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in (he
accounting policy for Property, plant snd equipment. Adjustments are mede to the canying value of the right of use
assel where the lease liability is resmeasured in secordance with the above. Right of use assets ave tested for
impaiment in accordance with [AS 36 Impaivment of asvels as discloged in the accounting policy in impairment,

Lease modifications

If & lease is modified, the modified conlract is evaluated to determine whether if is or contains a lease. If a lease
continues o cxist, the lease modificalion will result in elther a separate [ease or a change kn the accounting for the
existing leass.

The modification is accounted for as a separatc lease if both:

(a) The modification increases the scope of (he lease by adding the right 1o use onc or mors underlying assets; and
(b) The consideration for the lease Increases by an amount commensurale with the stand-alone price for the increase
in seope and any appropriate adjustments o that sfand-alone price to reflect the circumsiances of the particular
contracl.

If both of (hese conditions are met, the lease modification results in tvo separate leases, the unmodified artginal
lease and a separate lease, The Group then accotnts for these in line with the eccounting policy for new leases.

If either of the condilions are not mel, the modified lease is not accounted for es a separate lease and the
consideration is allocated to the contract and the lease liability is re-measured using the lease term of the modified
lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective date of the modification.

Far a modification that fully or partislly decreases the scope of [he lease (e.g. reduces the square footage of leased
space), IFRS 16 requires a Jessee {o decrease the carrying amount of the tight-of-use asset to reflect parlial or fulk
termination of the lease. Any difference between those adjustments is recognised in profit or loss at the effeclive
date of the modification,

For all other leese modifications which are not accounted for as a separate lease, IFRS 16 requires the lessec to
recognise the amount of the re-measuremcnt of the lease liability as an adjustment to the corresponding right-of-use
asset without effecting profit or Joss.

Short term and low valve leases

The Group has ntade ait accounting policy election, by olass of underlying asset, not to recegnise lease sssets and
lease liabilities for leases with a lease lerm of 12 months or less (i.e. short-tern leages).

The Group has made an accounting pelicy election on a lease-by-lease basis, nol to recognise lease assels on leases
for which the underfying asset is of low value.

Lease paymients on shoet term and [ow value leases ave accounted for on a steaighl line bases over the tetity of the
lense or other syslematic basis if consldered more appropriale, Shor term and low value lease payments are included
in opetating expenses in the income statement.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{(continued)

Share capltal

Ordinary shares are clessified as eguity, Equily instruments ave measuved at the fair value of the cash or ather
resources received ot receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments, If payment is deferred and
the tins value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present valuc basis,

Defined cowtribution penslon obligation

A. defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributlons are paid into a separate entity and has
no legal or constructive obligations 1o pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficicnt assets to pay all
emplayees the benelits relating to employee service In the curvent and prior periods.

Financial instruments
Initial recopaition

Financial assets and financial liabllitics comprise all assets and labilities refiected in the statement of financial
position, excluding properly, plant and equipment, inlanglble assels, deferred tax assets, prepayments and defecred
tax liabilities.

The Group recognises financial assets and fnancial liabilities in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the finaneial instcument.

Financial assets arc initially recognised at fair value, Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair valus,
represeating the proceeds received nel of premiums, discounts and fransaction costs thet are divectly aftributable to
the finaneial liability.

Purchases or sales of a financial assets under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established genetally by regulation or convention in the maketplace concerned pre defined as 2 regular way
purchase or sale. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are recognised on the frade date, i.e. the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or self the financial assets or financia! labilities. All regular way purchases and sales of other financial
assels and financial liabilities are recopnised on the settlement date, i.e, the date on which the asset or liability is
received from ot delivered to the counterpaty. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets thal require delivery within the {ime frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace,

Subsequent to initial mensurement, financial assets and financial liabitities are measured at either amartlised cost or
fair value.

Clagsification and measurement

Financial instryments are classified at inception into one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequent measwrement methodology: -

Financial assets are classified into one of the following categories:-
+ financia assets af amortised cost;
= financial assets st fair value through the profit or loss (FVTEL); or
Financial liabililies ere classified into one of the following two cafegovies: -
« financial liabilities at amortised cost; or
+ financial liabilities at faiv value through the profit or loss (FVTPL).
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes fo the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Augus( 2022
{continued)

Finaneial inshruments (continned)

The classification and the basis for neasurement are subject to the Group’s business medel for mansging the
financiel assets and the contraciual cush {low characteristics of the financisl assets, as detalied below:-

Financial assels af ennoriised cost

A financial assef Is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as af
FVTPL:

¢ the assels are held within a business mode) whase abjective is to bold asscts in order to collecl contractual
cash flows; and

+ the conbractual terms of tite financlal assets give rise on specified dates to cash [losvs that arc solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal atmount oulstanding.

If either of the sbove twe criteria is not met, the financial asssts are classified and measured at fair value through the
profit or Joss (FVTPL),

1f a financiat asset meets the amartised cost criterie, the Group tay choose fo designate the financia! asset at
FVTPL. Such an election s icrevocable and applicable only if the FVYTPL classification significantly reduces a
measyrement or recognition inconsistency,

Finanelal assels af faiv value througl: the profit or loss (FVYTPL)
Finanoia!l assets not otherwise classified above are classified and measuwred as FVTPL.

Financial {jabliitles at amortised cost .
All financial liabilities, other than those classified as financial liabilities at FYTPL, are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Fineanclal [fabilities ai fair value through the profit or loss
Financtal [iabilltics not measured st amortised cost arve classified and measured at FYTPL. This classification includes
derivalive liabilities,

Derecognition

Financlal assels
The Group derecegnises a financial asset whet;

s the contraclual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

» It transfers the right to recelve the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially ali of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the fioanctal assel are transferred; or

«  the Guoup neither transfers nor retaing substantially el! of the risks and rewards of ownership end it does
not retain control of the financial assel.

On derccognition of a financia] assel, the difference between the carryitig amount of the asset and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised es a gain or loss in the profit or loss,

Any cumnlative gain or loss reeognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as FYTOC! is

not recopnised in profil or loss on detecognition of such securities, Any interest in lransferred financial assels that
qualify for derecognition that is created or relained by the Group is recognised as a sepavate asset or liability.
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Financial tostraments (continucd)

The Group enters into transactians whereby i1 transfers assels recognised on its statement of financial position, but
ratains either all or substantially all of risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. In such cases,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Vhen the Group derecognises translerred financial assels in their entirety, but has continuing involvement in them
then the entily should disclose for each type of continuing involvement at the reporting date:

{=) The carrying amount of the assets and liabilitics that ars recognised ity the enlity’s statement of
financial position and represent the entily’s continuing involvement In the derecogaised financial
assets, and the line items in which those assets and liabilities ave recognised.

(b} The fair value of the assets and liabilities that vepresent the entity’s conlinuing involvement in the
derecognised financial assels;

(c} The amount that best represents the entily's maximum exposute to loss from its continuing
involvement in the derecognised financial assets, and how the maximum exposure to loss is
determined

(d) The undiscounted cash cutflows that would or may be required to repurchase the derecognised

financiel assets or othar amounts payable to the tronsferee for the transferred assels

Finaneial labilities
The Group derecogpises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelicd, o expire.

Impairment of financlal assets

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group recogtises loss allowarces for expected credit losses (ECL} on financial instruments that are not
Mmeasured at FVTPL, namely trade and other reccivables.

Provisions for credit-impairment ave recognised in the statement of income and are reflected in accumulated .
provision balances against each relevant financial instruments balance. !

fividence that the financial asset is credit-impaired incfude the following;

»  Significant financial difficulties of the borrower or issuet;

» A breach of contract such as default or past due event;

»  The restructuring of the [oan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

s Itis becoming probable that the boriower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

» There is other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the Group, or economic condlitions that corelate with defaults in the Group,

For irade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses 1o be
recognised fromm initial recognition of the receivables,

Trade receivables are not subject to material or significant credit losses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant
given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entities.
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Finanecinl insfroments (continued)

Finauctal instruments — Risk management

The Gioug is cxposed to finanolal risks In the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which atise in the normal
cowse of business. The primary {inancial risks that the Group is exposed to are noted below, for further delail on these
finangial risks please see note 27.

The principal financlal instrtuments used by the Group, fiem which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

»  Trade receivables

+  Cash deposits

»  Senfor and revoiving eredil facilities containing a variable element linked (o Sterling Overnight Index
Average

Capital Manngement
The Group’s objective when managing ils capitaf is to ensuve that entitfes in the Group will be able to continue as

going concern whilst waximising returns for stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity please see note
27 for the Group’s capital structure.
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3, Critical accomnting judgements and key sources of estimation

The preparatian of the financial statements requlres management to make estimates and agsumptions that affect the
reported amonnts of certain financial assets, liabililjes, income and expenses.

The use of estimates and assumptions is principally lmiled to the determination of provisions for impaioment and
the valuation of financial instruments as expiained in more detaii below;

Provisions for impairment

I determining impaliriment af financial assets, judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows as well as an assessment of whether the credit risk on the financiat asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and incorporation of farward-looking information in the measurement of HCL.

Fair value of financial assets and liahilities

Where the fair value of financial assets and ligbilities cannot be derived from active markets, they ave determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inpul to thege models is
devived from observable markels wheve available, but where this is not feasible, a degroe of judgement Is required in
determining assumptions used in the models. Changes in assumptions used in the models could affect the reperted
fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

Going Concern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s liguidity requirements based on a range of scenarios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meel operational and financial needs, These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near tevm and long term tquidily
requirements of the Group, to Inform the Direclors decision making on all key financial matters. The Directors
consider both short term and long term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three month daily liquidity
farecasting, aunual budget and peciodic infra year reforecesiing processes, and longer termi 3 year Jang range plans
for the Group. Bach of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for (the Group.

There are necessary estimates and judgements in the directots’ assessment of going concern these are considered In
detail in the strategic report.

In assessing the potential impact of & range of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the likely
impact on the Group of a range of 1isks specific ta the relevant business sector, as well as the compound impect of
risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

[n particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Divectors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simuitaneously, giving rise to a material adverse
impact on the Group’s profitabilify and liquidity during the going concern period, Specifically, the seyere but
plausible downside scenavio assumes:

*  Reduction in occupancy levels from bage forccasts of an aggregate of approximately 2% for the going
cancein period.

*  Costinflation:

o Wage inflation — additional site-wide wage inflation of 1.0% beyond the Group's planned wage
increases (which already reflect announced National Living Wage, Teacher’s Pay Scale, and
other intemnal increases)

o Non-Wage inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflation assumed beyand the Group’s base case,
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Crltical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation (continued)

* Fee Inflation — over and above the cost impacts the scenario considers a material shonfall in the
proportion of fee Increases that can be successfully achieved.

s Inierest rate increases — gssumes 2 marked and sustained increase in inlerest rales, ant therefore the cash
flows required to service the Group’s debl. The scenario factors in Bank of England Bage rates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and holding at this level for the remaining going concern period.

We do nol congider that COVID-19 will bave a malerial impact on the cashflows of the Group in the geing concern
period.

The revenyc and cost Impact of such a scenario would have s major legative impsact on the Group®s profitability for
the going concern period. With operating profil being adversely impacted by approximately 30% In (ke period.
Fuithermore, in adopting a prudent approach, the Directers have considered Lhis scenatio before relevant mitigating
actions {hat the business could inplement to limit the edverse impact, Before the inclusion of such mitigations the
Group continues to forecast sufficient liquidily and financlal covenant headroom.

Business Combinationg

The Group underlook three business combinations during the period (note 17). In accordance with IFRS, the
purchase method of accounting has been used, The Direclors determine and aliocate the purchase price of pequired
businesses nt the dale of the business combination, The purchase method requires significant estimates and
Judgments,

While Directors use their best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to
accarately velue assels acquired and liebilities assumed at the date of acquisition, estimates and assumplions are
inherently uncertain and subject to refinement, Examples of ciitical estimates in valuing certain assets we have
acquired inclnde;

s future expecled cashflows arising from assets and liabilities,

«  the fauir value of intangible and {angible assets, and
¢ discount rates,

Useful Economis life of intangible nssets

The Directors have delermined the usefu] economic life of certain intangible assets acquired as par! of bysiness
caombination. The amortisation periods are based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the length of
fixed-term cuslomer contracts,

Right of use assets and liabilities

The Group leases a number of progeriies in the jurisdictions in which i operates, recognised in accordance with
TFRS16 (note 13),

In caleulating the asset/liability aitached to several of the lease agreements the Group has requited use of an
Incrementat Borrowing Rate (“IBR”). The IBR has considered the risk-free rate attributable (o the currency, location
and lease term of each property, adjusted to reflect the interest rates the Group would be able to achieve based upon
its existing financing arrangements,
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Critieal acecounting judgements and key sources of estimafion {cantinned)

The Directors have epplied judgement to détermine the lease term for contracts that include a renewal or break
option. Extension options and break clauses ere included in a number of the Group's lease agzeentents to maximise
the flexibility in managing operational assets. In determining the lease term, the Divectors have considered all facts,
circumstances and the exersise dates of such clauses, Extension aptions and break clauses are only reflected jn the
icase term if there is reasonably certainty they wili be excrcised.

Impairment of geadwill and intangible fixed assels

The Directors must assess whether intangible assets have been impaired during the perlod, Factors laken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial performance
of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash generating unit, the viability, expected future pecformarice
of that unit using a discaunted cashflow model as at the period end and the assessed faiv value of each cash
generating unit, The key estimates and assumnptions that feature in the Impairment test is the selection of pre-tax
discount rate relative to the specific risks of the cash-generating unit and the preparation of pre-tax cash flows using
director approved forecasts with growth rates that represent the Dicectors® best estimates, (note 15)
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(continued)
4. Revenne

The aualysis of the Group’s revenue for the perlod is as follaws:

2022
£m
Turnover 1786
Other revenue 0.6
179.2
The analysis of the revenue by geographic region is as follows:
2022
£m
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle East based divisions 2,7
1792
5, Staff costs
‘The aggregale payrall costs {including directars’ remuneration) were as follows:
2022
fm
Wages atd salacies 91.4
Sooial security costs 8.0
Pension cosis, defined contribution scheme 4.5
103.9

The aversge number of persons employed by the Group {including the Directors) during the period, analysed by

category was as Follows:

2022

No.

Sile and aperational 2,987
Administration and support 174
3161
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6. Operating loss

Arlved at after charging/(ceediting)
2022
£m
Drepreciation expense 8.7
Depreciation on tight of use asscts 8.5
Amortisation expense 5.0
Expense on shart tern leases 0.8

7.  Augditars’ remuneration

Audit fees of £0.5m were incurred by the Group during the peiiod, il fees relate to the audit of the Group. There
were no fees incurced related to non-audit services.

8.  Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains or losses for the period are as follows:

2023
£m
Loss oh disposal of property plant and equipment . 0.3
9. Fintance incame awd costs
2022
£33
Finance [ncane
Interest on bank depasits e
0.1
Finance costs
Interest on external borrowings 12.0
Interest on lease liabilities 10.8
%8
Net finance costs %)
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10, Exceptlonal items

2022

£m

Acquisition costs refated (o business combinations 5.8
Asprls formation and reorganisalion costs 1.3
Other transaction costs and charitable donations 0.7
7.8

Acquisilion costs on business combinetions relate to the acguisilion of Aspris Children's Services Limited (£2.6m)
from the Priory Group, the acquisition of SC Topco limited (£3.1m), aud the acquisition of Aspris (Arden) Limited

(£0.1m),

Aspris formation and reorganisation cosls relate 1o ather expenses arising on the formation of the Aspris business as

slandalone from the Priory Group and include marketing-related expenses associgted with (e new Aspris brand,

Reotganisation casts primatily celate lo the revisian to redundancy costs associated with exit of certain cuslomer

conlvgets end the mplenientation of revised management organisational sttuclures in the Group.

Other iransaction cosls relate to the Group's assessment, and executlon, of other corporate and property related
p

transections.

The Group elected o make a one-off contribution to UNTCEF's Ukvaine appeal during the period.

11, Taxation

Tax yecognised in the income sfatement

2022
Curvrent tax £m
Curent tax on taxable income for 1he period 1.3
Deferved tax (note 26)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1.6)
Tax credited in the period (0.3)

The ressens for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and the standard rale of corporation tex
applied to the losses for the year are as follows:-

2022

Em

Loss for the year (27.4)
Tax using the conipany's lax vate 19% 3.2y
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5.3
Tax rate changes 0.4y
Total tax credited in fhe period (0.3)
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Taxation (continned)

Aspris Holdeo Limited

As aresult of the Finance Bill 2021 the rates of income tax are expected to increase fiom 19% to 25% for the period

beginning April 2023.

Tax liabilities are recognised when, despite the Group's belief that its tax retumn positions sre suppartable, the

Drirectors believe it is more fikely than not that a taxation suthority would accept ils ling position,

The Direciors believe that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open andit years based on its assessment

of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law.

No material uncertain lax positions exist as at 31 August 2022. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions
and inay involve a series of complex judgements abou! future events. To the exlenl that the final tax outcome of
these matters is different than the determination is made.

12, Property plant and equipwent

Group

Furaiture,

Properties

Land and fittings And Motor undev
bulldings equipment vehicles  constiuction Taotal
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
Additions 2.3 6.5 0.1 32 2.1
Acqguired through business
combinations 122.4 29.6 0.6 3.3 155,9
Disposals (1.0% (0.5) 0.2 .7
Traosfers 0.6 0.3 - (0.9) -
At31 August 2022 124.3 35.9 0.7 5.4 166.3
Depreefation
Charge for the periad 19 6.7 0.1 - 8.7
Eliminated on disposal 0.2) (0.3) - - (0.5)
At31 August 2022 1.7 6.4 1] - 82
Carrying amount
At 3] August 2022 122.6 295 06 5.4 158.1

Under the terms of the Group’s external borrowings there is a fixed charge, in favour of the exteenal lenders, over all
property acquired for a consideration of over £0.75m. Please refer (¢ note 22 for further information on the Group’s

external horrowings,
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{continued)

Group
Assets

Troperty  Motor vehieles Total

£m £m im

Cost or valuation
Acquired through business 150.8 24 153.2
combinations
Additions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Modificalions 8.3 - 8.3
Disposals 0.1 0.1 0.2
At 31 August 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Depreetation
Charge lor (he periad 7.3 1.2 8.5
Eliminated on disposal - - 0.1y (0.1)
At 31 August 2022 7.3 | 24
Carrying amount
At 31 Aupust 2622 154.7 1.7 1356.4
Linbilities

Property  Motor vehicles Tolal

£m Zm £m

Aequired through business combinalions 1531.0 24 1534
Addilions 3.0 0.5 35
Modifications 2.3 - 8.3
Disposels - - -
Inferest 10.2 0.3 105
Lease paymenls (14.0) (1.3) (15.3)
Foreign Exchange movements 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 Aygust 2022 158.6 1,9 160.5
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Right of use assets and labilities {continued)
Nature of leasing activities

The Group leases a numbel of propeities in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Some of these leases provide for
peymenis to increase each year by inflation or index rate movements, The Group has optiens fo purchase or ¢xlend
the |eases of certaln properifes. As the exercising of such options is not deemed to be reasonably certain, such
renevwal options ave not taken into account when determining the right of use assets and liabilities. Leases of vehicles
comprise only fixed payments over the lease tetm.

T.ease [iabilities are due as follows:

Meaturity analysis £
Year i 15.5
Year2 15,1
Yeard 14,3
Year4 13.9
Year 5 , 13.7
Onwards 2313
_ 303.8
Loss: unearned Interest (143.3)
160.5
Anzalysed as:
Non-Current 155.4
Cuzrent 5.1
160.5

Amounfs recognised in profit and loss

An amount of £0,9m has been recognised in profit and loss in respect of property leases that expired and were not
renevved, and for rolling lease agreements. Cash payments (n respect of these leases amouated to £6.9m.

At 31 Avgust 2622, the Group had no commitments under these agreernents in excess of a twa-month notice pericd.
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14, lntangible assets
Group
Conteactual
Goodwill customer
(Nate 15} relnttonships Fatal
£m £m £m
Caost or valuation
Acquired through business combinations o 69.3 98.8 . 1631
At 31 Auvgust 2022 69.3 98.8 168.1
Amaortisation
Amartisation charge - 50 5.0
Trpaivment (note 15) 19.7 - 19.7
At 31 August 2022 19.7 50 247
Carrying amount )
At 31 August 2022, 49.6 93,8 1434

All Intangible Fixed Assets (“IFAs") were identified on Purchase Price Allocalion exercises (“PPA™) exercises

carried out on behalf of management by an independent expert, at two points:

I. Acquisition of Prioty Bducalion Services Limited (“PESL” — subsequently rename Aspris Children’s

Sevvices Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 August 2021
2, Acquisition of SC Topco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022
3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Heallhcare (Arden) Limited, lallerly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited

All IFAs have been smortised in line with useful economic lives determined by managemant al cach relevant
acquisition date,

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group underiakes an annual review of Goodwill and shere other
where thete sre indicators of impeivment.
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(continued)

15. Goodwill and impairment

Goodwill represents the excess of 1he consideration over the faiv value of the net assets ascquired on the purchase of
the subsidiary companies, In accovdance with IFRS, this balance is not amortised and (s subject to annual impaitment
reviews. Goodwill has been allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU") based on Purchase price Allocation

(“PPA™) exercises:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Limited (“PBSL" — subsequently renamed Aspris Children’s

Services Limited) by Aspils Hotdco Limited on 31 Aupust 2021

. Acgoisition of 8C Topco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022
3, Acquisition of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limited, lalterly renamed Aspris (Avden) Limited

ACSL Sand-  Arden Total

Gioup castle

Group
£m £m £m im
Goodwill recognised during the period 210 47.7 6 69.3
Impairment recopnised during the period . _(oemn - 9.7
Goadywill 21,0 28.0 0.6 49.6

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an anoual veview of Goodwill.

In order te determine if there has been any impairment of Goodwill, management prepared calcuiotions of the
recoverable emourit for each CGU. For both ACSL Group and the Sandcastle Care Group the recoverable valus is
detetmined by the forecast present value of future cash flows of the CGU based on S-year projections ending in a

terminal growth rate assumption, Foreeasts ave based on the assumptions set out

Key Assumptions ACSL Group
Discount Rale 11.0%
Terminal Growth Rate 2.0%
QOperating Margin 10.3%

ACSL Group

below:

Sandcastle Care
103%

1.0%

20.6%

Since the date of acquisition, the ACSL. Group has maintained performance in line with the budgeted targets set for
the business. Operational challenges, particularly regarding constraints on the availability of staff have been
effectively managed, without a material adverse impact on ACSL’s profitability for the period.

Forecast for FY23 is based on budget prepsred by management and spproved by the Doard, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022. Operating profit is forecast to increase at 2% CAGR between I'Y24 and
FY27. Replacement capex to mainlain the estate has piso been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels,

Regarding the Group™s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of ACSL Group on 3 [ August 2021 the Group assessed
the fair value of identifiable nef assets acquired ko be £41.2m, compared ta the total consideration of £62.2m, giving
rise to £21.0m inlangible goodwill being recognised by the Group, As at 31 August 2022 Management assessed the
recoverable amount for ACSL Group to be £241.1m, £(9.5tn grealer than the cacrying valus, and thus no impairment

to the Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the period.
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Goodwill and impatrient (continued)
Sandeastle Care Group

Since the date of scquisiticn, the Sandeastle Care business has maintzined & high quality rating performance of over
90% posl-acquigition, but the business has been impacted by operational chailenges that have reduced both itz
available cepacily and utilisation, Whilst sspeets of these challenges arc not thought 1o be permanent, they have
impacted the overall assessment of the present value of future cashflows from the business. These challenges include
staffing consiraints that have led to reduced tofal accupancy and an adverse impact on operating margins conipared to
the budgeted tavgels for the business,

Terocast for FY23 Is based on he budget prepared by management and approved by the Board, with eppropriate
adjustments for trading al 31 August 2022, Operating prefit is forecast to increase al 1% CAGR bebween FY24 and
EY27. Replacement capex (o maintain the eslale has also been assumed, on pac with FY23 budgeted levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of SC TopCo Limited on 28 January 2022 the Group
assessed the fair value of identifiable net assets sequired to be £14.0m, compaced o the fotal consideration of £61,7m,
giving rise to £47.7m intangible goodwill being recoghised by the Group,

Matiagement assessed the recoverable mmount for Sandeastle Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m lower than the
carrying value of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance sheet dale, and as such have impaived the goodwil
assoclated with the CGU by the shortfall in carrying value versus the vecoverablt amount,

Iaipaivment seasitivities for ACSL Group and Saadeastle Care Groug

If any one of the following assumptions were emended by { percentage point, the impacl on the impairment value
would be as follows;

—

Sandeastle Care

Sensifivities % Aspils

Discount Rale (1% increase)

Reduction to carrying value
fram £241.1mto £22].2m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m io £7).6m

Terminel Growih Rate (1% reduction)

Operating Margin (1% reduction beyond FY27)

Reduction to carying value
from £241.1m to £220.7m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6mta £71.5m

Reduction to carrying value
from £241.1m 10 £223.0m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6mto £74.8m

Aspris {Arden) Limlted

The assets held by Aspris (Avden) Limited consist of land and buildings, (hese were at fair value on acquisition,
there are ne subscauent indicators of impairment to the assets of Aspiis (Arden) Limited. Since the acquisition of
Arden the business has been performing in line with expectations, and thus no impsirment to the Goodwill arising

on acquisilion is requived in the period.
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16. Invesiments - Group Subsidiaries

(continued)

Delails of the group subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022 are as follows:

Mame of substdiary

Aspris Midcoe Limited
Aspris Bideo Limited

Aspris Childyen's Services Limited

Coxlease Schaol Limited
Castlecare Group Limited

Progress Care and Education Limited

Speciality Care Limited
Strathmore Cellege Limited
Aspris (Thetford 1) Limited

Aspris New Education Services Limlited

Castlecare Holdings limited
Quantum Care {UK) Limited

Frincipal activity

Holding company
Holding company
Specialist educstion services
Non trading

Non trading
Children’s homes
Holding company
Care delivery
‘Non trading
Education

Non trading

Chiidren’s care hormes

Speciality Cave (Rest Homes) Limited  Care delivery
Speciality Care (Medicare) Limited
Specinlised Courses Offering Purposeful Care delivery

Holding company

Education Limited

Aspris (Thetford 2) Limited
Dunhall Property Limited
Castle Homes Care Limited
Castlecare Cymru Limited
Castle Homes Limited
Rotheare Estateg Limited
Cusllecare Education Limited

Non trading

Non trading
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Property company

Specialist education services
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Registered office

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdorn
United Kingdorm
United Kingdom

Froportion of
ownership
interest and
voting rights

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

(continued)

Investments (continued)

Thetford Trustee LLP Non trading United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Troup Housc) Limited * Education United Kingdom 100%
Aaspire Scotland Holdings Limited* Haolding company United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotlend Limited* Children®s care and educetion  United Kingdom 106%
Galaxy Cafe Limifed* Children’s care and education United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy UK Leisure Iimited* Children’s care and education  United Kingdom 100%
SC Topeo Limited** Holding company United Kingdom 100%
SC Bideo Limited** Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Natabra Properties Limited*#* Properly campany United Kingdom 1009
Sandcastle Care Holdings Limited** Bolding company United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Care Limited** Children’s cave homes United Kingdom 100%
Partixol UK Limited** Property company United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Arden) Limited Property company United Kingdom 100%
Priory Healthcare LLC*** Healthcare UAE 0%

Unless stated otherwise Lhe registered address of each subsidiary is: The Forge, Church Street West, Woking,
Surrey, Bngland, GU21 6HT

*Company registered address is: Radio City Building, 1a Bridgend, Kitblmie, Scofland, KAZ5 7DF

*+Company registered address 1s; 4% Whitegate Drive, Bleckpool, Lancashire, Ergland, FY3 $DG

*+% 4 spris Group contrals Priory Healthesrs LLC through a combinelion of contractual agreements and the ability to direct the financial aod
operationel management of the entity

Aspris Holdeo Limited has given statutory guarantees sgainst all the outstanding liabillties of all wholly owned
subsidiaries 8s at 31 August 2022. This thereby allowed doimant subsidiaries to be exempt from the requirement to
prepare and fils annual accounts under section 3944 or the Companies Act, and nos~dormant subsidiaries to be
exempt from the annual audit requirement under Section 479A of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31
Aungust 20272,

The Group has control of a 60% interest in Saudi Healtheare LLC (“SHc"), an entity registered in KSA, which
operates 8 Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh. The operation, although imporiant to management’s future plans and
strategy in the reglon, is not seen as material in the context of these Financial Statements.

During the period the Group loaned £1.1m to SHe, in addition to the £0.1m interest in share capital and £0.3m.
acquired on business combination. SHc did not trade during the period and incurred losses of £0.9m, the Group's
share of these losses £0.5m have been recognised in operating costs.

Investments - Company

Group

2022

Investments made during period - Cost fm
Aspris Midco Limited 119.1
AtJ3] Aupgust 2022 119.1
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17, Business cambinatious

Acquisttion of subsidiary — Aspris Children’s Services Limited and subsidiarfes

On 31 August 2021, the Group acquiced 100% of the issued share capital of Priory Bducation Services Limited
(latterty named Aspris Children’s Services Limited), obfaining conlrol, The principal activity of Aspris Childven’s
Services Limited ("ACSL”) is provision of specialist schools, colieges, children’s homes and fostering. ACSL was
acquired by Aspris Bldeo Limited, 8 wholly owned subsidiary of Aspris Holdeo Limited. This transaction was
undertaken to purchase the children’s services and Middle East operations of the Priory Group, of which ACSL. and

its subsidiaries were previously members of.

The 100% shareholding in ACSL was obtained for cash consideration of £62.2m,

As part of the acquisition, foans totalling £90.1m between ACSL and its subsidiaries, and Priory Group were seitled,

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabililies assumed are as sct out in the

table below:

£m Book leir Value Fair value
Value adjustments
Assets and liabilitles acqnired
Propeity, plant and equipment 134.2 5.0 139.2
Right of use assels 153.2 {0,2} §53.0
Intangible assets 272 15.2 42.4
Trade and other receivables 13.7 0.1 13.8
Cash and cash equivalent 19 - 1.9
Lease lahilities {153.2) - (153.2)
Trade and other payables (134.0) - (134.0)
Provisions (0.8) - (0.8)
Doferred tax [iabilities (3.8) {17.3) (21.1)
Total identifiable assets 38.4 2.8 41.2
Goodwill o - - 210
Total consideration 2.2
Satisfied by:
Cash 62,2
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 622
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (1%
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 60.3
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Bustitess combinntlons (continued)

The fair value of the financial assels includes receivables with a fair value of £§2,2m and a gross contractual value
of £12,6m. The best estimale at acquisition dale of the contractual cash flows nol Lo be collected are £3.4m.

The goadwill of £21i arfsing from: Uie acquisition consists of the presetice of ecrtain intangible assets, which do not
qualify for separate vecognition, such as;

»  Assembled workforce of ACSL, including both the UK and Middle Rast workforce ;
«  Aspris’ abilily to extend the existing relationships acquired with Loeal Autherities beyond the yseful i

economic hife anticipated at initial scquisition :
+  Development of new relationships in the Middle East i

Nong of the goodwill is expected lo be deductible for income lax purposes,
Acquisilion related costs o £2.5m arose as a result of the transaction,
Acquisitlon of subsidiary - SC Topeo Limited and subsidiaries

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of 8C Topeo Limited (*Sandeastic Care’),
oblaining control, The principal activity of Sandcastle Care js the provision of therapeulic care homes for chitdren.
Sandeastle Care was acquired to achieve the creation of 2 conselidated business in the Waterland group that is
focused on providing childrer's service. The transaction provides Aspris with greater coverage in lhe Northowest of
Engtand, where Sandcastle Cares’ properties ave primarily located.
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Business combinations (coutinued)

The emeunts recognised in respect of the ideatifiable assets acquived and ligbilities assumed are as set oul in the
table below:

£m Book Fair value Fair
Value adjnstments value
Assets and lisbilities aequired
Propeity, plant and equipment 244 (13.2) L2
Right of use assats 0.2 - 0.2
Intangible nasets 12,0 44 < 56.4
Trade and other recelvables 3.8 - 38
Cash and cash equivalent 3.6 - 36
Leasc Habilitles {0.2) - 6.2}
Trade and other payables (2.5} - {2.5)
Income tax [iability (L1} B (L1)
Loans and borrowings (41.3) - (41.3)
Deferred tax Habilities 0.2) (15.9) {16.1)
Total identifiable assels (1.3) 15.3 140
Goodwill . - 4T
Total consideration 61.7
Satisfied by:
Cash 61.7
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 61.7
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (3.6)
Net cash outflow arising on ncquisition 58.1

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of £3.4m and a gross conlraclual value of
£3.4m.

The goodwill of £47.7m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of certain intangible assels, which do
not qualify for separate recogaltion, such as;

=  Agsembled workforee of Sandcastle Care.
»  Sandceastle Care’s ability to extend the existing retationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the
useful economic life anticipated at initial acquisition.

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation taX purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £3. tm arose as a result of the transaction,
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Business cambinations {(vontinued)
Acquisition of subsldiary — Aspris (Arden) Limited

On 31 Mavch 2022, the Group acquived 100% of the issued share capital of Hollyblue Healihcare {Arden) Limited,
latterly renamed Aspris {Arder) Limited on oblgining canteol. Hs principal aclivity is a property lessor. The
purchase of Hollyblue [lealthcare (Arden} Limited enabled the acquisition of the freehold inlerests in proporties
previously leased to the Graup. This included prapertics that had previously formed parl of the Priory Group’s
residential adult care division. Subsequent to the purchase of Hollyblue (Avden) Limited such properties wete
disposed of by the Aspris Group to the Priory Group at fair value,

The amounts secognised in respect of the identifinble asscts acquived and linbilities assumed are as set out in the
teble below:

fm BoukcVaiue i vonte vaiue
Assets and linhitities ncgnired

Property, plant and equipment 5.5 - 5.5
Trade and other payables 0.1 - (0.1}
Income tax liability 0.1y - 0.1)
Deferred tax liabilities - (0.6) (0.6)
Total identifiable asscts o 53 (0.6) A7
Goodwill - - 0.6
Total consideration 3.3
Satisfied by:

Cash 5.3
Cash flow aualyais:

Cash congideration 5.3
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired -
Net cash oulflow atising an acquisition 5.3

None of the goodwill Is expecled to be deduelible for corporation tax purposes,

Acquisition velated costs of £0.{m arose as a resull of the transaction,
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(continued)

. Business combinations (vontinued)

Tmpact of the nequirces on amounts reported in the statement of comprelensive income

The amounts of revenue and profit or loss of the acquirees since acquisition date included in the consolidated

statement of income for the reporting period is as follows:

Asprls  Srodeastle  Arden

£m £in £m

Revenue 1627 165 6.0

Operating cost {140.9) _(15.5) 03

Operating profit before impairment and other losses and exceptional 21.8 1.0 03
costs

Impairment and other losses and excepiional costs (8.0) (19.8) 0.0

Operating profit 12,8 (18.8) 0.3

The vevenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the eurrent veporting period as through the acquisition date
for all business combinations that occurred during the year had been at the beginning of the 12 month trading period

starting 1 September 2021, is ag follows:

£
Revenue 191.0
Operating cosl (171L.7)
Operating profit before impairment and other Josses and excepiional 19.3
costs
impairment and other losses and exceptional costs (28.3)
Operating protit {9.0)
18. Tyade and other receivables
Group Company
31 August 31 August
2022 2022
Current £m £m
Tiade recejvables 197 -
Provision for impairment of trade receivables I (' | -
Net trade receivables 19.6 -
Accrued income 0.4 -
Prepayments 1.7 -
Loans receivable from joint venture {note 28) 1.0 -
Other receivables B i.8 02
24.5 0.2

Ali cutrent receivables are due within 1 year of balance sheet date, None of these are subject to material o significant
credit tosses. Credit risk Is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue s derived from publiely

funded entities.

Amounis receivable from joint venlure are not subject to interest and are repayable on demand.
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1% Cash and cash equivalents

Cagh at bank

{continued)

Group

2022

Lm
18,1

Company
2022

£m

0.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and at bank, Cash af bank is held with banks or financial
institulion counterparties which are investmend prade rated. Management do not expee! any losses fiom nen-

performance of counterparties.
20, Deferved income

Acquired through business combination

Deferved during the year
Recognised during the year

Deferred Income Is in respect of services invoiced in advance of delivery and is released as services are delivered,

21. Issued capital and reserves

Allatted, ealled up nud fully paid shaves

2022 2022

No. £000

A Ordinary shares of £] each 82,851,341 82,851
B Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,232,266 12
85,866,210 84,646
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(continued)
Issued capital and rescrves (continued)
MNew shares allotted

Class No. Conslderation
£000
A Ovdinary shaves of £1 cach! 82,851,341 116,861
B Ordinary shares of £1 ench? 1,782,603 2,923
C Ordinary shares of £ cach? 1,232.266 36
85,866,210 119,120

* A Ordinary shares of £{ cach have (ull voting and payments of dividend tights, right o distdbutions plongside 3 Osdinary shnrehioldess in
priarity 10 C Ordinary sharcholder, subject to a tireshold, Rights to distributions ance the threshold has heen surpassed elongside the B Crdinary
sharsholders mid C Ordinary shaceholders,

* B Ordinary shares of £ eachy have full voiing end payments of dividend rights, Tight to disinbutions aleapside A Qrdinacy st 1decs in
priority to C Ordinary shareholder, subjeet to a threstiold. Rights to dislributions ance the threshold has been surpasscd slongside the A Ordinary
shareholders and C Ordinacy shareholders,

* C Ordinary shares of £1 each have o voling rights. C Ordinaty shares have rights to dividends and distribulions ance the tlreshold has been
surpassed alongsids the A and B Ordinary Sharelinlders,

22, Loaus and borrowings

Group

2022

Non-current loans and borrowings £

Externnl loans 165.0
Capitalised debt fees 54

External borrowings 159.6

The Group entered into a senfor term and revolving facility agreement on 27 August 2021 to facilitate the
acquisition of Sandcastle Care and (uture acquisitions. As at the end of ¢he period the drawn senjor facilities of
£165.0m are secured over the Group®s assels and cary Interest at a variable margin over the applicahle SONIA rate.
The loans are repayable 7 yeaus fiom the date of completion of the acquisition off ACSL.

External borrowings are vecognised at fair value net of (ransaction costs that are directly attributable to the credit
facilities. At the balance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group®s Loan facilities arc subject to a single financiai covenant test which is assessed quarterly, This covenant
assesses the total gross Leverage of the Group as a ratio to proforma LTM EBITDA. of the consaolidated group at
each quarteily test date. At the balance sheet date the covenant theeshold was 7.4x, 68 at 31 August 2022, the ratio
level was materially below this threshold al a level of 4.9x. This equates to £11.6m of headroom expressed in terms
of proforma LTM EBITDA.

As at 31 Aupgust 2022 the Group had Setters of credit in place amounting to £2.3m. This athount is ringfenced within
the Group’s total revolving credit facility of £22m for this puspose, with no other armounts drawn under this facility
ns at the balance sheel date. These letters issued by the Group’s principal bankers to the Gyoup’s insurers, an
employee pension scheme, and to support credit granted under supplier contracts.
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{continued)
23, Previsiens

Legnl

provision

2022

£nt

Acquired through business combination 0.8

Charged in income statement 04
Used during year (0.2)

1.0

24. Trade and other payables

Group  Company

2022 2022

£ £m

Trade peyables 3.1 -

Accrued expenses 117 -

Amounts due to related parties - 0.9

Soclal security and other taxes 2.3 -

Other payables R 4.4 -

215 0.9

Other payables consist of credit balances, funds held on behalf of ADEK. for the operstion and invesiment of the
school operated by the Group and savings held on behalf of young persons.

25, Pensian

The Group operates defined contiibution: pension schemes, The pension cost charge for the perlod represents
conlributions payable by the Group to the scheme and amounted to £4.5m

26. Deferved trx

Deferred tax is caleulated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax vate of 19%, The
increase In corporation tax to 25% is expected {o be effective from April 2023, This new rate will be applied 1o
deferred tax balances which are expecied to reverse as at | September 2022,

Deferred lax assets have been recognised in respect of alf temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets
where the Direclors believe it is probzbie that these assels will be recovered,

The movements In deferred tax assets and liabllities (prior to the offsetilog of balances wilhin the same jurisdiction
as permilted by TAS 12) during the period ase shown below,
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{continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

Detsils of the deferred tax liability, amaunts recognised in the profit or foss and amounts recopnised in other
comprehenstve income are as follows:

Recognlsed In Recognised in Recogniscd in Total
business income other 31 August
combinations comprehensive 2022
(Note 17) income
Intangible assct diffeences 23.8 (1.3) - 228
Tangible asset differences e 9.3 _ -1y
— 37.8 _(1.6) - 362

Deferred fax assef bas not been recognised in respect of capilal tax losses cartied forward in the UK totalling £2.4m
as there s insufficient evidence as to their recoverability.

27. Financial instranteunts

Financinl assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities cemprise all assets and [abilitics reflecled in the statement of financial
position, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferved tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax linbifities,

Group Company
2022 2022
Financial asscts £ £m
Investments m subsidiaties - 1151
Trade and other receivables 2238 0.2
Cash end cash equivalent 18.1 0.7
40.9 12040
Financial liabilitics

Trade and other payables 21.5 D.9

Tncome tax liability 0.9
Deferred income 28.8 -
Lease liabilities 160.5 -
Loans and borrowings 15%.6 -
Provisions 1.0 -
372.3 4.2

There is no difference between the carrying value of financial instruments and their fair value, The Group has no
financial instruments that are measured at fair value,

The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial assets.
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Tinancial mstruments {confinted)
Financlal rislk management

The Group is exposed ta financial risks i the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business, The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed (o are detailed below:

Credit ¥isk - Casli deposits and Trade receivables
Finaneial instruments which potentially expose the Group to eredit risk consist primacily of cash and trade receivables.

Cash is only deposited with major financial institutions thel satisfy certain credil ctiterla, Credit sk in refation to
trade receivables is nol considered to be significant given that the vast majouity of revenue is derfved from publicly
funded education and care services, The Group provides credit fo customers i the nomual course of business and the
balance sheet is net of allowances of £0.1m for doubtful receivables, The Group measurzs those allowsances at an
amonnt equal to the Sifetime expected credit losses using both quanlitative and qualitalive information and analysis
based ou the Group’s historical experience and forward-laoking information.

Allowances against doubtlul debls are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated irvecoverable amounts,
delevmined by reference o past experience of the counterparfy. The majority of the Group's allowance for doubtfil
debis ielates lo specific trade receivables thaf are not considered to be recaverable, and management only considers it
approptiate to create a collective provision based on the age of lhe trade recelvable in respect of certain types of trade
receivables.

The aging of trade receivables at 31 August is as follows:

£m
Cwrent 49
30-60 days 14.0
60-150 days 0.5
150 days + 03
19,7

The Directors consider that Lhe catrying amount of trade and other recelvables is approximately equal to their fair
value.

Trade receivables at least 60 days past due for which no loss liowance has been made at 31 December is £0,7m.

Further {o the credii risks described on gash and trade recsivables the Group does not have any signtficent credit rvisk
expostre {o any single counterpaity or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The Group defines
counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are veinted entities,

There is no concern aver the credit quality of amounis past due but for which no loss allowances has been recognised
sinee the risk is spread over a number of unrelated countesparties which include central and local Government, The
maxinum exposute fo credil risk al the repoiting dafe is the camying value of each elass of receivable mentioned
above and cash held by the Group,
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Financial rish mapagement (continued)

Intevest rate risk— Seiior and Revofving credit facilitles containing a variable element linked to Sterling Overnight
Index Average

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit fucilities, The facilities are
denowinated in pounds and are borrowed with interest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate. Senior
loans are tepayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities are repayable on 31 August 2026.

[n addition to assessments requived by macro-economic events, the Group monitors its near term interest rate exposure
on a monihly basis, and longer ierm exposure on a bi-annual basls. This includes the yeview of the optioas available
to it for the hedging of intersst rats tisk, but currently does not have a hedged component to the interest burden on its
external debt. in light of prevailing matket conditions, and the high cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe
the Group has sufficient capacity to addvress the risk of interest rate rises,

Based on modelling performed, a 100 basis point shift in SONIA tates would have e £1.65m increass or decrease on
interest payments due on the Group’s externsl debt. A 350 basis point shift (being the maximum liksly change in
interest rates over the year from the period end) wyould have an Impact of £5.8m on inlerest payments due on the
Group’s external debt.

Liquidity risk

The Group prepares both annual and short-term cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated
projeals, Bortowing facilities are utilised as necessary to finance requirements. The Gioup has sufficient available
bank facilities and cash flows fvom profils to fund current commitments.

The following table shows the contractual cash flow maturities for financial liabilities:

Total 01 years 2-5 years 5+ years

Trade and other payables 216 216
Borrowings 165.0 165.0
Lease liabilities 303.8 15.5 57.0 231.3

Tareign currency risk

Substantially all of the Group's operations are in the UK and as such foreign currency risk is not deemed significant.
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Capita] Risi Management

The Group's abjective when managing its capital is lo ensure that enlities in the Group will be able lo continue as a
going congern whilst maximising returus for stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity, The Group's
capilal sirueture is as follows;

2022
£in
Cash 18.1
Bomrowings' (165.0)
Lease lishilities (160.5)
_Equity_ 92.0
). Excluding nccnied intecest and eapitalised deb| fees
Analysis of net debt
Business Cash Other
Combluations flow Interest movement?
£m £m £ £m £m
Cash 5.5 12.6 “ - 18.1
Bourowings' _(41.3) {123.7) - - {185.0}
Net Debt (exeluding (35.8) (1111} - - (146.9)
Lease linbilities)
_ Lease liabilities (153.4) 153 (10.5) (11.9) (160.5)
Net Debt (123.0) (92.0) {10.5) (11.9) (307.4)

1. Excluding accrued inlerest and capitalised debt fees oF E5 4m
2, Relales (o non-cash movemenis In Jease linbilities - se¢ note 13 for delails

28, Related parties

Ultimnte parvent rud controlling party

The Company’s Immediate parent is Standbyco 35 B.V

The ultimats parent is Waterland Private Equity Investments B,V

The ullimate contrelling party is Waterland Private Equity Inveslments B.V

Aspiis Holdeo Limited is the smallest and lavgest company for which cansclidated financial statements are prepared
for public use.
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Related pactles (eontinued)

Balanoes and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which ace related parties, have beern eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed jn this note,

The Group is owed £1.4m from Saudi Healthcare LLC, a related parly as 2 jolnt venture investment which is equity
accounied for in these statements, there is no interest charge, and this balance is repayable op demand. Held against
this receivable is a provision of £0.4m for the Group’s share of the inilial losses incurred over the investiment amount
made in Saudi Healthcare LLC. The net of the amownts owed of £1.0m is detaiied in note 18,

The Group paid & management chaygs of £30,000 to WPEF VIII Holding Codperatief W.A, a related pacty through
common control,

Prior to the acquisition of Aspris Group (note 17) Priory Bducation Scivices Limited (“PESL”) was a parl of the Priory
Group, Al the time of the transeclion Priory Group was a related party, Whilst the Group’s operations swere largely
autonomous from those of the wider Priory Groyp, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it
by the Priory Group. These services continued under a (ransitional services avrangement agreed at the time of the
Group’s acquisition of PESL. This transitional agreement provided for back office support, including use of syslems
and saftware, human resources support, estates and aspects of financial reporting assistance. This transitional stage
included the Implementation of Aspris’ own standalone systems and suppott infrastructuve, the process of which was
completed by 30th Movember 2022, with all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased to be
provided from that date,

On 28 Janunary 2022, the Group aequired 100% of the issued share capital of SC Topeo Limited (note 17}, oblaining
control, SC Topco Limited was a related party by the nalure of common ownership. One of the principal purposes of
the acquisition was to achieve the oreation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is focused on
providing children's service,

During the period an amount of £0.49m was advanced 1o directors at an interest rate equal to the IIMRC official rate
of tnterest, on a tevm concurrent with the period swith which the Directors remain shaveholders in the Group, Interest
is paid by the Directors annually and early repayment of any portlon of the outstanding balance is permitted at any
time. During the period repayments of £0.2m were made, with the remaining £0.2m outstanding at the period end
being included in other receivables (note 18)
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Keay management personnel

Key management personnel aro those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
conlrolling the activities of the Group.

2022
£000
Directors’ emolumenis 1,926
Direclors’ post-employment beneflts 8

Tatal emotuments fov the highest paid director were £1,153,000, this (ncluded a one-off non-recurring rewvard of
£305,000 relating to the exceptionally high level of corporate transactions and reorganisation aclivity successfully
campleted during the period. The value of the Compsany’s contiibutions peid fo a defined contribution penston
scheme in respect of the highest paid direclor amounted to £4,000.

‘The number of Divectors to whem retivement benefits are accrued under money purchase pension schemes is 2.

29, Tvents alter reporting dante
Acquisition of BHIS Holdings Limited

Follewing the close of the reparting period, and consistent with the Group strafegy of expanding its specialist
education division, the Group completed the acquisition of a speciglist education provider in the UX, BHIS
Holdings Limited, on | Mavch 2023,

The acquired business, and s wholly owned subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximately 100
primary and secondary school aged young people in the East of England,

To support this acquisilion, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group entered into an extension of its
available external debl facilities with its existing Jenders, This new growth facility was agreed and elfective from 8
February 2023, These facilitics provide an additional £25m of conumitted available debt capacity to support the
growth projects of the Group.

In addition, as part of the above acquisition the Group issued additionsl equity capltal to ds shareholders in March
2023, with the above acquisilion being funded through a combination of a pattial dravdown of the new growih debt
facility and this nexv equity capital raise.
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